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DESCRIPTION FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013

UNCONSOLIDATED

Operating Results
Revenue - net (Rs. Million) 4,459              4,311               10,186             4,439               2,535               1,950               
Gross Profit (Rs. Million) 1,570              1,777               4,109               2,021               1,304               1,035               
Profit Before Taxation (Rs. Million) 207                 602                  2,654               1,083               567                  451                  
Profit After Taxation (Rs. Million) 95                   394                  2,104               749                  418                  409                  

Financial Position
Share Capital (Rs. Million) 302                 302                  302                  302                  302                  302                  
Accumulated Profit (Rs. Million) 3,735              3,733               3,766               2,401               2,039               1,919               
Non Current Assets (Rs. Million) 2,956              2,857               2,659               1,533               1,367               1,589               
Non Current Liabiltiies (Rs. Million) 166                 167                  149                  40                    46                    42                    
Curent Assets (Rs. Million) 3,009              2,921               3,043               2,856               1,786               1,328               
Current Liabilties (Rs. Million) 972                 767                  652                  1,275               392                  276                  

Summary of Cashflow Statement
Cash generated from Operations (Rs. Million) 431                 854                  621                  973                  512                  284                  
Net cash used in Investing activities (Rs. Million) (332)                (516)                 (82)                   (223)                 (172)                 (147)                 
Net cash used in Financing activities (Rs. Million) (132)                (454)                 (743)                 (400)                 (303)                 (128)                 

Key Financial Ratios

Profitability Ratios
Gross Profit ratio (%) 35.2                41.2                 40.3                 45.5                 51.4                 53.1                 
Net Profit After Tax to Sales (%) 2.1                  9.1                   20.7                 16.9                 16.5                 21.0                 
Return on Equity (%) 2.0                  8.1                   42.9                 24.3                 15.4                 15.7                 
Return on Capital Employed (%) 4.5                  12.8                 54.4                 35.7                 21.5                 17.8                 

Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio (Times) 3.1                  3.8                   4.7                   2.2                   4.6                   4.8                   
Quick Ratio/Acid Test Ratio (Times) 1.8                  1.8                   1.8                   1.3                   2.9                   2.7                   

Turnover Ratios
Debtor Turnover Period (Days) 44                   31                    14                    19                    21                    26                    
Inventory Turnover Period (Days) 160                 226                  113                  187                  196                  230                  
Creditors Turnover Period (Days) 100                 90                    18                    141                  82                    78                    
Working Capital Cycle (Days) 104                 167                  109                  66                    135                  178                  
Non-Current Asset Turnover Ratio (Times) 1.5                  1.5                   3.8                   2.9                   1.9                   1.2                   
Operating Cash Flow To Sales Ratio (%) 9.7                  19.8                 6.1                   21.9                 20.2                 14.6                 

Investment/Market Ratios
Earnings per Share Basic & Diluted (Adjusted) (Rs.) 3.2                  13.0                 69.7                 24.8                 13.8                 13.5                 
Cash Dividend per Share (Rs.) -                  7.0                   22.0                 19.0                 12.0                 7.0                   
Bonus Share Issued (%) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Price Earning Ratio (Times) 61.6                29.6                 14.8                 25.8                 16.7                 8.2                   
Market Price per Share (Rs.) 195                 387                  1,031               640                  230                  111                  
Cash Dividend Payout Ratio (%) -                  53.7                 31.6                 76.6                 86.8                 51.7                 

Capital Structure Ratios
Debt To Equity Ratio (%) -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Interest Cover (Times) 19.8                38.0                 239.0               78.5                 34.2                 39.4                 

CONSOLIDATED

Operating Results
Revenue - net (Rs. Million) 5,057              5,002               11,335             5,711               3,832               2,879               
Gross Profit (Rs. Million) 1,596              1,911               4,594               2,597               1,828               1,380               
Profit Before Taxation (Rs. Million) 86                   591                  2,859               1,360               761                  523                  
Profit After Taxation (Rs. Million) (17)                  395                  2,233               944                  552                  466                  

Financial Position
Share Capital (Rs. Million) 302                 302                  302                  302                  302                  302                  
Accumulated Profit (Rs. Million) 4,195              4,265               4,280               2,811               2,289               2,061               
Non Current Assets (Rs. Million) 3,168              3,096               3,025               1,751               1,642               1,528               
Non Current Liabiltiies (Rs. Million) 223                 246                  269                  101                  122                  65                    
Curent Assets (Rs. Million) 3,801              3,745               3,838               3,474               2,115               1,737               
Current Liabilties (Rs. Million) 1,143              876                  821                  1,456               524                  387                  

KEY OPERATING AND  
FINANCIAL DATA  

FOR THE LAST SIX YEARS 
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

% Change from preceding year
BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS
Share Capital and Reserves (0.3)           (1.2)           59.4          13.2          4.4            12.0          
Non Current Liabilities (0.8)           12.0          271.7        (12.4)         9.8            (50.6)         
Current Liabilities 26.7          17.8          (48.9)         225.3        42.1          34.0          
Total Equity and Liabilities 3.2           1.3           29.9         39.2         8.1           11.7         
Non Current Assets 3.5            7.4            73.4          12.2          (14.0)         2.2            
Current Assets 3.0            (4.0)           6.6            59.9          34.5          25.8          
Total Assets 3.2           1.3           29.9         39.2         8.1           11.7         

PROFIT AND LOSS ANALYSIS
Revenue - net 3.4            (57.7)         129.5        75.1          30.0          10.1          
Cost of sales 14.0          (58.3)         151.4        96.4          34.6          6.2            
Gross Profit (11.7)        (56.8)        103.3       55.0         25.9         13.9         
Administrative expenses 4.8            4.7            43.2          20.2          14.4          4.8            
Selling and distribution expenses 23.3          (11.5)         39.7          23.2          23.5          10.6          
Other expenses 9.5            (82.2)         221.7        68.3          47.3          14.0          
Other income 41.5          (27.9)         42.9          (0.9)           3.5            (31.6)         
Operating Profit (64.7)        (76.8)        143.1       87.7         26.3         6.8           
Finance costs (32.2)         46.1          (20.1)         (18.3)         45.4          48.9          
Profit Before Taxation (65.6)        (77.3)        145.2       90.9         25.8         6.0           
Taxation (46.4)         (62.0)         64.6          123.3        253.2        202.8        
Profit After Taxation (75.8)        (81.3)        181.1       79.3         2.2           (0.7)          

HORIZONTAL 
Analysis 



20  |

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
-------------------------- % --------------------------

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS
Share Capital and Reserves 80.9          83.8          85.9          70.1          86.1          89.1          
Non Current Liabilities 2.8            2.9            2.7            0.9            1.5            1.4            
Current Liabilities 16.3          13.3          11.4          29.0          12.4          9.5            
Total Equity and Liabilities 100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       
Non Current Assets 49.6          49.4          46.6          34.9          43.4          54.5          
Current Assets 50.4          50.6          53.4          65.1          56.6          45.5          
Total Assets 100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       100.0       

PROFIT AND LOSS ANALYSIS
Revenue - net 100.0        100.0        100.0        100.0        100.0        100.0        
Cost of sales 64.8          58.8          59.7          54.5          48.6          46.9          
Gross Profit 35.2         41.2         40.3         45.5         51.4         53.1         
Administrative expenses 6.8            6.7            2.7            4.3            6.3            7.2            
Selling and distribution expenses 25.3          21.2          10.1          16.7          23.7          24.9          
Other expenses 1.1            1.1            2.6            1.8            1.9            1.7            
Other income 2.9            2.1            1.2            2.0            3.5            4.4            
Operating Profit 4.9           14.3         26.1         24.7         23.0         23.7         
Finance costs 0.2            0.4            0.1            0.3            0.7            0.6            
Profit Before Taxation 4.7           13.9         26.0         24.4         22.3         23.1         
Taxation 2.5            4.8            5.4            7.5            5.9            2.2            
Profit After Taxation 2.2           9.1           20.6         16.9         16.4         20.9         

VERTICAL 
Analysis 
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Putting patients first and ensuring access to the most needed treatments lies at the heart of the Ferozsons 
Excellence Framework. We are committed to exploring new areas of unmet need, providing innovative 
solutions and creating opportunities to add value to the lives of patients and the community. 

Performance and Role of Board of Directors:

During the year under review the board has carried out its roles and responsibilities diligently and has 
effectively contributed in the strategic affairs of the Company.  The Board has reviewed the financial statements 
of the Company periodically along with governance matters such as the transparencies of disclosures, 
policies, corporate plans, budgets, and compliance of all regulatory requirements by the Management. 
During the proceedings of periodic meetings of the board, management has given presentations on critical 
and strategic analysis of all functional areas of business operations of the Company.

The Board has approved a risk management framework with a vision to implement a strong system of 
internal controls to ensure an effective control environment for compliance with the best practices of 
Corporate Governance. The Board has also stressed upon high standards of honesty and integrity pivotal 
for success of the business and reputation of the Company.

The composition of the Board of Directors reflects mix of varied backgrounds to provide strategic direction 
to the management. The board is duly assisted by its sub-committees.

The Board has also put in place a mechanism for annual evaluation of the performance of the Board of 
Directors, its members and subcommittees to identify the areas of further improvement and to adopt best 
global practices. On the basis of latest feedback received under this mechanism, the performance of Board 
has been found satisfactory. 

Operational Overview of the Company

Despite the challenges posed by the decline in our imported range of HCV products, cost increases fueled by 
devaluation and economic turmoil in the market, your Company outperformed the market in its promoted 
brand range in our generic line of products that has witnessed a compound growth of 15%. To strengthen our 
generic portfolio, we launched Valiant (Vildagliptin) for diabetes mellitus, launched Daklana (Daclatasvir) 
to further augment our Hepatology range, and will also be adding line extensions of our existing products 
such as Carveda (Cardvedilol) and Sitagen (Sitagliptin).

In order to promote a healthier and more productive society, Ferozsons remains committed to making social 
investments in programmes impacting the underprivileged in the society. In addition to working with The 
Citizens Foundation (TCF) and the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS), this year our 
support facilitated patient organizations working in the field of hepatology. Moreover, we have established 
partnerships that ensure screening, prevention and treatment of Hepatitis C patients through a number of 
community based projects. All these initiatives are designed to help Pakistan meet its commitment to the 
World Health Organization to eliminate Hepatitis C by 2030. We hope to continue changing lives and 
playing our role in transforming healthcare in Pakistan.

Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed
Chairperson

Chairperson’s Review
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We are pleased to present the 62nd Annual Report which includes the Audited Financial Statements of your 
Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2018 along with the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
its subsidiaries, BF Biosciences Limited and the Farmacia retail venture.

Your Company’s Individual and Consolidated Financial Results

A summary of the financial and operating results for the year and appropriation of the divisible profits as 
compared to last year are given below:

During the year under review consolidated net sales of your Company closed at Rs. 5,057 million, an 
increase of 1% over the last year. On a stand-alone basis, net sales of your Company closed at Rs. 4,459 
million against Rs 4,311 million last year, demonstrating an increase of 3%. 

The decline in our imported line of products, mainly Sovaldi®, a drug used to cure Hepatitis C, continued 
this year, diluting the sales growth of the Company. The net sales of the Company outside the Gilead 
portfolio increased by of 20% over the last year. Apart from our imported line of products, our promoted 
generic product portfolio in the private market grew by 15% over the last year, whereas our generic products 
sales to institutions have grown by 179% over the last year.

The gross profit (GP) of your Company in absolute terms decreased by 12% net over the last year which 
is mainly due to decrease in Sovaldi® sales along with reduction in carrying value due to diminution in 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Individual Consolidated

2018 2017 2018 2017

(Rupees in thousands)

Profit before tax 207,266 602,218 85,572 591,176

Taxation (111,860) (208,553) (102,584) (196,572)

Profit / (Loss) after tax 95,406 393,665 (17,012) 394,604

Profit available for appropriation 3,735,100 3,733,432 4,194,798 4,265,340

Appropriations

Interim cash dividend for the FY 2018 @ Rs. Nil share 
(FY 2017: @ Rs. 3/Share) - (90,561) - (90,561)

Final cash dividend for the FY 2018 @ Rs. 2 share 
(FY 2017: @ Rs. 4/share) (60,374) (120,747) (60,374) (120,747)
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net realizable value of stocks of Sovald® amounting to Rs. 190 million during the year under review as 
compared to Rs. 140 million recorded in same period last year. Total carrying value written down to date 
against stock of Sovaldi ® to its net realizable value is Rs. 330 million which in management’s view is 
sufficient as at balance sheet date.

The net profit after tax (NPAT) of your Company closed at Rs. 95 million, against Rs. 394 million achieved 
last year. The effective tax rate for the year ended 30 June 2018 closed at 54% against 35% last year. If 
charge related to diminution in net realizable value against stocks of Sovaldi® is excluded, the effective 
tax rate would have arrived at 28%.  Since these stocks had been made fall under final tax regime at import 
stage, the charge against diminution in net realizable value does not affect the tax provisioning in the year 
under review.

Sales of the subsidiary Company BF Biosciences Limited closed at Rs. 537 million with a decrease of 12% 
over the last year. Net loss after tax (NLAT) for the year stood at Rs. 98 million. The decline in operating 
results of the subsidiary is primarily due to the expanded use of oral treatment regimens for HCV patients 
which are impacting the market for Interferons. As a matter of prudence, the management has written off 
stocks of Inteferons worth Rs. 33.8 million as compared to Rs. 25.4 million in same period last year. Total 
stocks of Inteferons written of to date is Rs. 59.2 million which in management’s view is sufficient as at 
balance sheet date.

Our subsidiary Company BF Biosciences has registration applications pending with DRAP for new 
products, and is in talks with potential partners in the biotech space for additional product portfolios. We 
have recently entered into an agreement with an international biotech firm for the registration and local 
manufacturing of a proprietary Hepatitis E vaccine, which carries important potential for the company and 
for Pakistan. Hepatitis E virus is endemic in the country, and carries high mortality in pregnant women, the 
elderly, and in patients with pre-existing chronic liver disease. The availability of the vaccine in Pakistan 
promises to save thousands of lives, and add value to the company’s portfolio of biotech products. 

Key Operating and Financial Data 
 
A summary of key operating and financial data of the individual and consolidated financial statements for 
the last six years is annexed. 

Capital Expenditure

In order to keep pace with the latest technologies in pharmaceutical industry, during the year under review 
your Company has invested Rs. 134 million for balancing and modernization of its manufacturing facilities.

Subsequent Events

No material changes affecting financial position of the Company have occurred between the balance sheet 
date and the date of this report.

Earnings per Share

Based on the net profit for the year ended June 30, 2018 the earnings per share (EPS) stand at Rs. 3.16 per 
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share, compared to prior year EPS of Rs. 13.04 on capital of Rs. 301.868 million. Consolidated EPS for the 
year under review closed at Rs. 0.23 against last year EPS of Rs. 13.11. 

Dividend Announcement

The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend of 20% i.e. Rs. 2 per 10 - Rupee share. This amounts 
to a total payout of 20% for the year ended June 30, 2018.

These appropriations will be accounted for in the subsequent financial statements, in compliance with the 
Companies Act, 2017.

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The Company is fully complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2017, a statement to this effect along with Auditors’ report is annexed with our 
annual report. 

Statement of Compliance with Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework

The Board of Directors of your Company is committed to the principal of good corporate management 
practices. The Management of Company is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practice set out 
in the Code of Corporate Governance. 

•	 The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present its state of affairs 
fairly, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

•	 Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained. 

•	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial 
statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

•	 The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been 
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately 
disclosed and explained. 

•	 The systems of internal controls are sound in design and have been effectively implemented by the 
management and monitored by the internal auditors as well as Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee. The Board reviews the effectiveness of established internal controls through the Audit 
Committee and suggest, whenever required, further improvement in the internal control system. 

•	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

•	 There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed 
in the Listing Regulations.

•	 Significant deviations from last year’s operating results have been disclosed as appropriate in the 
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Directors report/Chairperson’s review and in the notes to the accounts, annexed to this report.

•	 The Company does not envisage corporate restructuring or discontinuation of its operations in the 
foreseeable future.

•	 All major Government levies in the normal course of business, payable as on June 30, 2018 have 
been cleared subsequent to the year end.

•	 The values of investments of employees’ provident fund based on latest audited accounts as of June 
30, 2017 are Rs. 438 million.

Contribution to National Exchequer

During the current financial year out of the total wealth generated, your Company contributed approximately 
Rs. 203 million to the national exchequer in lieu of various levies including Income Tax, Custom Duty, 
Federal and Provincial Sales Taxes WWF, WPPF and Central Research Fund.

Cash Flow Management

The Company’s cash flow management system projects cash inflows and outflows on a regular basis and 
monitors the cash position on a daily basis.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties during the year ended June 30th, 2018 were placed before the audit 
committee and the board for their review and approval. These transactions were approved by the Board in 
their meetings held during the year. Detail of related party transactions is given in note 32 to the financial 
statements.

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Committees

The information regarding the meetings of the board of directors and Board committees held during the 
year ended June 30, 2018 is annexed.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018 is annexed. All trades in the shares of the Company, if 
any, carried out by the directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Executives and their spouses and minor 
children are also annexed.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In line with our Code of Business Conduct and Excellence Framework, we are committed to the protection 
of environment and investing in community’s health and education initiatives.

Your Company contributed towards various CSR activities during the year under review, mainly with the 
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following organizations: 

•	 Cancer Care Hospital and Research Center Foundation
•	 The Citizens Foundation
•	 Pakistan Center for Philanthropy
•	 Liver Foundation Trust
•	 National Management Foundation (LUMS)

Risk Management

Our risk management approach is primarily based on understanding, identifying, assessing and then 
prioritizing risk areas in order to mitigate these risks through evolving operational strategies.

The following are some of the primary risks being faced by our Company:

•	 Economic and political risks: The ever changing economic and political condition in our country 
has exposed our Company to this risk as well. In order to mitigate this risk the management 
monitors the financial market conditions and political climate very closely and appropriate actions 
and strategies are discussed at the management level to counter unfavorable situations. 

•	 Competition risks: Due to the weak regulatory controls over illegal and low quality products in the 
market, the pharmaceutical industry in Pakistan is exposed to unhealthy competition risks. In order 
to mitigate these risks your Company along with other members of the Pakistan Pharmaceutical 
Manufacturers Association, is in continuous lobbying for improved Government regulations and 
policies. 

•	 Supply chain risks: The supply chain process plays a pivotal role in day-to-day operations of the 
Company. We are mitigating this risk through comprehensive production planning and integrating 
it with the sales forecasting and ordering systems. 

•	 Information technology risks: The Company continues to invest in its IT infrastructure keeping 
in mind its future needs.

•	 Financial risks: These are the risks that are directly attributable to the financial viability of the 
Company. These have been elaborated in detail in note 37 of the financial statements.

Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive directors including the independent director are entitled only for the fee for attending the 
meetings.

Auditors

The Auditors Messer KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
reappointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2019.
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Industry Review and Future Outlook

The current year proved to be challenging for your Company mainly on account of reduction in carrying 
value against diminution in net realizable value of stocks of Sovaldi®. Our own manufactured branded 
generics business of gastroenterology, cardiology and diabetes is expected to grow at reasonable rate.

Further in order to enhance long term shareholders’ wealth, your Company has taken several initiatives 
including launch of several new brands and partnered with new international entities. 

In order to further strengthen our commitment towards elimination of Hepatitis C from country, we 
launched Daklana (Daclatasvir), a drug which is recommended as concomitant treatment with Sofosbuvir 
for treatment of Hepatitis C. Daclatasvir got FDA approval for the treatment of Chronic Hepatitis C in 
combination with Sofosbuvir.

Our application for registration of Epclusa®, a pan genotypic agent for treatment of HCV from Gilead has 
been approved by DRAP. This presents another paradigm shift in HCV treatment and elimination, however 
low cost generics approved by DRAP is adding competition in the HCV market space. Epclusa has a 50% 
reduced treatment duration (90 days VS 180 days with Sovaldi and Ribavirin), demonstrates high cure rate 
across all genotypes of HCV.

In line with our growing commitment to maternal and child health, Ferozsons has partnered with PanTheryx 
Inc., a US-based life science company, to launch DiaResQ sachets, a breakthrough nutritional innovation for 
diarrhoea relief in children and adults. The product was included among the world’s 30 leading healthcare 
innovations that show promise in transforming global health by 2030, in the ‘Reimagining Global Health, 
Innovation Countdown 2030’ report, produced by PATH, and supported by Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, 
USAID and Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Norway.

DiaResQ gives physicians an option for a highly effective nature-based treatment of diarrhoea, a disease 
that annually claims the lives of over 125,000 children under the age of 5 in Pakistan alone.

We have also partnered with GE Healthcare, the world’s leading equipment manufacturers of neonatal 
health as we are committed to bring latest medical technologies in Pakistan for improvement of maternal 
health. We were able to secure an order of 400 ultrasound machines for our Principals GE Healthcare from 
the Punjab Government and trained over 1000 midwives to date on detection of preventable mortalities 
during pregnancy and child-birth. During the year under review 260 ultrasound machines were supplied and 
commission has been booked accordingly.

Your Company has also launched Valiant and Valiant – M, a range of products for the treatment of diabetes 
mellitus.

Being patient centric, the management of your Company is committed to addressing unmet patient needs; 
however the delays in registrations by DRAP, issues in drug pricing policy and foreign exchange rate 
adjustments possess significant threats in delivering our commitments to patients and shareholders. We 
have already witnessed multiple foreign rate adjustments during the year which has impacted our margins. 

An important development during the year was the notification of the 2018 Drug Pricing Policy. Contentious 
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areas such as impact of the devaluation of the Rupee remain in the new policy. We hope that these areas will 
also be resolved by mutual consensus of Industry and DRAP.

In an ongoing Human Rights Case, the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) cognizance in respect of matters 
pertaining to prices of medicines in Pakistan. Pursuant to a consensus roadmap that was agreed between 
the DRAP and the Industry, the SCP decided the matter by remanding outstanding Hardship cases back to 
DRAP with a direction to reconsider these under the 2018 drug pricing policy.

While regulatory oversight tends to remain largely focused on pricing, counterfeit and low quality drugs 
remain a major concern for the organized industry players and concrete steps are necessary to protect the 
stake of the industry and the patients.

Acknowledgements
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For and on behalf of the Board

Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed						      Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed	
Chief Executive Officer							      Chairperson

Lahore                                                                                                
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A total of Five Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2017-2018 on the following dates:

•	 03 July 2017
•	 30 August 2017
•	 18 October 2017
•	 19 February 2018 
•	 21 April 2018

Sr. No Name of Directors Attendance
1 Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed 4
2 Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed 4
3 Mrs. Amna Piracha Khan 5
4 Mrs. Munize Azhar Peracha 5
5 Mr. Farooq Mazhar 1
6 Mr. Nihal Cassim 3
7 Mr. Shahid Anwar 3
8 Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain 3

Audit Committee Meetings:
1 Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain 3
2 Mrs. Amna Piracha Khan 4
3 Mr. Nihal Cassim 2
4 Mr. Shahid Anwar 3

HR&R Committee Meetings:
1 Mr. Shahid Anwar 2
2 Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed 2
3 Mr. Nihal Cassim 1
4 Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain 1

Dates and attendance of Board Meetings
held during the year ended 30 June 2018
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Name of company: 	 Ferozsons Laboratories Limited 
Year ended:		  June 30, 2018 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

1.	 The total number of directors are seven as per the following: 

2.	 The composition of board is as follows:

Further, as per the provision to regulation 6 of the 2017 code, grace period has been prescribed in respect of 
transition phase for the composition of the Board with respect to minimum number of independent directors 
as specified in the 2017 code. Accordingly, requirements of minimum number of directors will be complied 
in next elections of directors.

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company. 

		 Further under the 2017 code, the maximum number of directorship in listed companies a person can 
hold has been reduced to 5. As per the proviso to regulation 3 of the 2017 code, grace period of one 
year has been prescribed to comply with this requirement.

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Gender Number
Male 4
Female 3

Category Names
Independent Director Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain
Other Non-Executive Directors Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed

Mrs. Amna Piracha Khan
Mrs. Munize Azhar Peracha
Mr. Nihal Cassim
Mr. Shahid Anwar

Executive Director Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed
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policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by the Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of Companies Act 2017 
(the Act) and these Regulations.

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8.	 The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9.	 In term of Regulation 20 of the 2017 Code, the Company will ensure that at least 50% of the 
directors on their board have acquired the prescribed certification under Director Training Program 
by June 30, 2019. Further, where exemptions from training is applicable, approval from Security 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan will be obtained within the prescribed time.

10.	 The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations.

11.	 CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12.	 The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

		 The company was in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, 2012. Further, during 
the year, the committees of the Board of Directors have been reconstituted to comply with the 
requirements of the 2017 code. 

Committees Composition/Names
Audit Committee Chairman

Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain

Members
Mrs. Amna Piracha Khan
Mr. Nihal Cassim
Mr. Shahid Anwar

HR & Remuneration Committee Chairman
Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain

Members
Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed
Mr. Nihal Cassim
Mr. Shahid Anwar
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13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to 
the committee for compliance. 

14.	 The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 

15.	 The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants 
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the 
policies and procedures of the Company.

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight 
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children 
do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement 
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.	 We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed
Chairperson

Meetings Frequency
Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year 

ended June 30, 2018.
HR & Remuneration Committee Two meetings were held during the financial year ended 

June 30, 2018
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves 

Authorized share capital
50,000,000  (2017: 50,000,000) ordinary
	 shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Capital reserve
Accumulated profit
Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment

Non current liabilities 

Deferred taxation

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowings - secured
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer

2018
 Rupees 

 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 321,843 

 3,735,100,328 

 789,650,185 
 4,826,940,766 

 165,760,483 

 792,675,804 
 96,852,363 
 82,143,724 

 533,713 
 972,205,604 

 5,964,906,853 

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 321,843 

 3,733,431,676 

 807,524,953 
 4,843,146,882 

 167,046,631 

 682,611,179 
 2,138,283 

 80,854,747 
 1,646,851 

 767,251,060 

 5,777,444,573 

2016
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 321,843 

 3,765,936,024 

 832,797,085 
 4,900,923,362 

 149,191,075 

 583,605,560 
 -   

 67,868,588 
 32,767 

 651,506,915 

 5,701,621,352 

Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018

Note

5
6

7

8

9
10

11
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Director

2016
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 2,384,990,408 
 4,174,991 

 263,310,134 
 6,351,325 

 2,658,826,858 

 22,249,383 
 1,866,923,740 

 387,586,473 
 35,476,550 
 92,321,784 
 7,637,820 

 45,918,965 
 335,000,000 
 249,679,779 

 3,042,794,494 

 5,701,621,352 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Long term investments - related parties
Long term deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
Stock in trade
Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances - considered good
Deposits and prepayments 
Other receivables
Income tax - net
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Note

12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22

2018
 Rupees 

 2,649,216,106 
 2,016,272 

 297,798,460 
 7,066,325 

 2,956,097,163 

 46,218,187 
 1,219,853,920 

 536,412,764 
 43,976,934 

 174,960,635 
 92,465,979 

 170,398,448 
 527,343,533 
 197,179,290 

 3,008,809,690 

 5,964,906,853 

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 2,566,321,990 
 2,319,638 

 280,949,050 
 7,066,325 

 2,856,657,003 

 22,754,337 
 1,546,037,068 

 365,941,171 
 72,918,451 

 151,421,998 
 10,595,528 

 127,916,951 
 487,884,889 
 135,317,177 

 2,920,787,570 

 5,777,444,573 
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Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Profit from operations

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Taxation
Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

 Note

23
24

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

31 
 

2018
 Rupees 

  4,459,323,228 
 (2,889,668,475)

 1,569,654,753 

 (303,096,037)
 (1,126,344,657)

 (50,987,393)
 129,086,882 
 218,313,548 

 (11,048,102)
 207,265,446 

 (111,859,642)
 95,405,804 

3.16

2017
 Rupees 

 

  4,311,441,718 
 (2,534,669,504)

 1,776,772,214 

 (289,129,914)
 (913,763,385)
 (46,569,913)

 91,202,506 
 618,511,508 

 (16,293,573)
 602,217,935 

 (208,553,225)
 393,664,710 

13.04

Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Profit after taxation

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account:

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

2018
 Rupees 

 95,405,804 

 -   

 95,405,804 

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 393,664,710 

 -   

 393,664,710 

Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Balance as at 01 July 2016	
Impact of re-statement - note 4.1			 
Balance as at 01 July 2016 - restated		
	
Total comprehensive income for the year	

Surplus transferred to accumulated profit:
	
-	 on account of incremental depreciation on property, 

plant and equipment charged during the year - net 
of tax			

				  
Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus on 	
	 property, plant and equipment			 
	
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized 
directly in equity - Distributions	
				  
-		  Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016 at 

Rs. 12 per share			 
				  
-		  Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 at 

Rs. 3 per share			 
			 
				  
Balance as at 30 June 2017 - restated
				  
Total comprehensive income for the year	

Surplus transferred to accumulated profit:
		
-	 on account of incremental depreciation on property, 

plant and equipment ‘charged during the year - net 
of tax	

-	 on account of disposal of fixed assets during the 
year - net of tax			 

				  
Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus on 	
	 property, plant and equipment			 
	
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized 
directly in equity - Distributions

-	 Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 at 
Rs. 4 per share			 

				  
Balance as at 30 June 2018	

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

 3,765,936,024 
 -   

 3,765,936,024 

 393,664,710 

 26,633,557 

 -   

 

 (362,242,092)

 (90,560,523)
 (452,802,615)

 
3,733,431,676 

 95,405,804 

 27,011,229 

 (1,017)
 27,010,212 

 -   

 (120,747,364)

 3,735,100,328 

Accumu-
lated profit Total

 -   
 832,797,085 
 832,797,085 

 -   

 (26,633,557)

 1,361,425 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 807,524,953 

 -   

 (27,011,229)

 1,017 
 (27,010,212)

 9,135,444 

 -   

 789,650,185 

Revaluation 
surplus on 
Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Capital Reserve

---------------------------Rupees---------------------------

Revenue 
Reserve

 321,843 
 -   

 321,843 

 -   

 -   

 -   

-   

 -   
-   

 321,843 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   

 321,843 

Capital 
reserve

 301,868,410 
 -   

 301,868,410 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   

 301,868,410 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   

 301,868,410 

Share 
capital

 4,068,126,277 
 832,797,085 

 4,900,923,362 

 393,664,710 

 -   

 1,361,425 

 
(362,242,092)

 (90,560,523)
 (452,802,615)

 
4,843,146,882 

 95,405,804 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 9,135,444 

 (120,747,364)

 4,826,940,766 

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non - cash and other items
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Amortisation of intangibles
	 Trade debts write off
	 Earnest money written off
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
	 Finance costs
	 Gain on re-measurement of short term investments to fair value
	 Dividend income
	 Gain on sale of short term investments
	 Profit on term deposits
	 Share in profit of Farmacia
	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
	 Central Research Fund
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund no longer payable written back
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
	 Stock in trade
	 Trade debts - considered good
	 Loans and advances - considered good
	 Deposits and prepayments
	 Other receivables
 
Increase in current liabilities
	 Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund paid
Workers’ Welfare Fund paid
Central Research Fund paid
Long term deposits - net
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangibles
Dividend income received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on term deposits received
Short term investments - net
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Finance cost paid
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Cash and bank balances
Running finance

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Note

12.4

26
26

12.5

21.1

14.1

28

20.1

9.1

12.5

22
10

2018
 Rupees 

 207,265,446 

 246,338,313 
 2,044,342 

 -   
 7,430,890 

 (17,231,877)
 11,048,102 

 (19,138,298)
 -   

 (1,947,077)
 -   

 (16,849,410)
 11,281,892 
 2,717,079 

 -   
 7,090,508 

 232,784,464 
 440,049,910 

 (23,463,850)
 326,183,148 

 (170,471,593)
 28,941,517 

 (30,969,527)
 (74,481,371)

 55,738,324 

 116,767,490 

 612,555,724 

 (146,491,843)
 (18,670,972)
 (10,028,086)
 (6,482,366)

 -   
 430,882,457 

 (337,417,193)
 (1,740,976)

 -   
 25,416,641 

 -   
 (18,373,269)

 (332,114,797)

 (12,161,240)
 (119,458,387)

 (131,619,627)
 (32,851,967)
 133,178,894 
 100,326,927 

 197,179,290 
 (96,852,363)
 100,326,927 

2017
 Rupees 

 

 602,217,935 

 209,789,257 
 1,855,353 

 15,350,017 
 -   

 (10,941,817)
 16,293,573 

 (85,611)
 (12,287,391)
 (3,171,520)

 (834,747)
 (17,638,916)

 29,941,741 
 6,048,836 

 (43,352,950)
 10,028,086 

 200,993,911 
 803,211,846 

 1,297,663 
 319,084,055 

 6,295,285 
 (37,441,901)
 (59,100,214)

 (2,116,118)
 228,018,770 

 187,451,758 

 1,218,682,374 

 (227,981,280)
 (53,034,847)
 (54,163,779)
 (28,795,204)

 (715,000)
 853,992,264 

 (395,980,754)
 -   

 12,287,391 
 15,801,732 
 1,522,185 

 (149,627,758)
 (515,997,204)

 (14,679,489)
 (439,816,456)

 (454,495,945)
 (116,500,885)

 249,679,779 
 133,178,894 

 135,317,177 
 (2,138,283)

 133,178,894 

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer



48  |

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1	 Reporting entity

		 Ferozsons Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a private limited company 
on 28 January 1954 and was converted into a public limited company on 08 September 1960. The 
Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange and is primarily engaged in the imports, manufacture 
and sale of pharmaceutical products and medical devices. Its registered office is situated at 197-A, 
The Mall, Rawalpindi and the manufacturing facility is located at Amangarh, Nowshera, Khyber 
Pakhtun Khwa. 												         
				 

2	 Summary of significant transactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position 
and performance											         
		

	 The Company’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following 
events and transactions during the reporting period:							     
						   

							    
	 -	 The accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold 

land and plant and machinery changed during the year as detailed in note 4.1 to these 
unconsolidated financial statements.								      
				  

	 -	 The gross profit for the year has been affected primarily because of change in sales mix and 
devaluation of Pakistani rupees thereby impacting the cost of imported raw material and 
imported finished goods purchased for resale. 							     
					   

	 -	 The Company has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 265.92 million in 
aggregate (building and plant and machinery) for the expansion and modernization of its 
current manufacturing facility. The expansion has been financed through own sources.		
									       

	 -	 Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies 
Act, 2017, including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the 
Companies Act, 2017, the Company has presented additional disclosures in these financial 
statements and represented certain comparative figures.						    
							     

	 -	 For a detailed discussion about the Company’s performance please refer to the Director’s 
report.											         

3.	 Basis of preparation

		 3.1	 Separate financial statements

		  These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the 
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Company in which investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for on the 
basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of reported results and net assets of 
the investees. Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared separately.	
	

		  The Company has following major investments:

		  Name of the company / firm					     Shareholding
		  Subsidiaries
		
		  - BF Biosciences Limited					     80%
		  - Farmacia							       98%

3.2	 Statement of compliance 

		  These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:							     
					   
-	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies 
Act, 2017; and									       
	

		  -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

		  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed.										        
		

3.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations and forth coming requirements			
									       

3.3.1	 Standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year		
	 									       

		  During the year certain amendments to standards or new interpretations became effective. 
However, the amendments or interpretations did not have any material effect on the 
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company.						    
						    

3.3.2	 New and revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting 
standards, and interpretations that are not yet effective					   
		  					   

		  The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:				  
								      
-	 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - 

amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements 
and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The 
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amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net of tax 
withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from 
cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification 
and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not 
likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.				  
						    

-	 Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ 
- effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that 
an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only 
when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or 
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the 
change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for the use of a 
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not 
likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.				  
							     

-	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization 
and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint 
ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture 
separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar 
election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate 
or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, 
to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate 
or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in 
subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
financial statements.

		
-	 IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies which date 
should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is 
translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is 
received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of 
the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial 
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain the 
date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If 
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a 
date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.								      

											         
-	 IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods 
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beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when 
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation 
requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of 
current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an 
impact on Company’s financial statements.						    
										        

-	 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It 
replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 
11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The 
Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes 
required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard.			 
								      

-	 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with 
Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 
2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes 
revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a 
new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and 
new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on 
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Company 
is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in 
classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected 
loss model on adoption of the standard. 							     
				  

-	 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). 
IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 
4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating 
Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance 
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing 
its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to 
the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating 
leases. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact 
of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to use assets and 
liabilities on adoption of the standard.							     
				  

-	 Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term 
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on 
or after 01 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such 
entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in 
the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment 
and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 



52  |

28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The 
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.		
									       

-	 Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or 
Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). 
The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined 
benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its 
current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling 
is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan 
and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of 
amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.	
	

		  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address 
amendments to following approved accounting standards:					   
							     
-	 IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment 

aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in 
a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its 
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. 
A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation 
when it obtains joint control of the business.						    
					   

-	 IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences 
of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) 
are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable 
profits.										        
	

-	 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of 
general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the 
asset is ready for its intended use or sale.						    
					   

		  The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 
2019 and are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.		
	

3.4	 Basis of measurement

	 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
convention except for certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at 
revalued amounts and revaluation of certain financial instruments at fair values. The 
methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in their respective policy notes.		
										        

3.5	 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (“Rs.”) which 
is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Rupees has 
been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.				  
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3.6	 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting 
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making judgment about carrying value of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.											        
										        
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and any future periods 
affected.										        
	
Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements and estimates with 
a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the ensuing 
paragraphs.											         
	

3.6.1	 Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment 
on regular basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.						    
						    

3.6.2	 Intangibles

The Company reviews the rate of amortisation and value of intangible assets for possible 
impairment, on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of intangible assets with a corresponding affect on the amortisation 
charge and impairment.										        
		

3.6.3	 Stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in trade

The Company reviews the stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in trade for possible 
impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of the respective items of stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in 
trade with a corresponding affect on the provision and net realizable value.		
	
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.		
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3.6.4	 Provision against trade debts, advances and other receivables

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables 
to assess impairment and provision required on annual basis.					   
	

3.6.5	 Provisions

Estimates of the amount of provisions recognized are based on current legal and constructive 
requirements. Because actual outflows can differ from estimates due to changes in laws, 
regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place 
many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are regularly reviewed and 
adjusted to take account of such changes.							     
					   

3.6.6	 Impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets including 
receivables, advances and cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal 
estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such indication.					   
							     

3.6.7	 Fair value of investments

The Company regularly reviews the fair value of investments, the estimate of fair values 
are directly linked to market value. Any change in estimate will effect the carrying value of 
investments with the corresponding impact on profit or loss account.				  
								      

3.6.8	 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by 
appellate authorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the view taken by 
the income tax department at the assessment stage and the Company considers that its view 
on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent 
liabilities.											         
	

4	 Significant accounting policies
	
	 The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods 

presented in these financial statements, except as disclosed in note 4.1.				  

	 4.1	 Changes in accounting policy

	 Upto 30 June 2017, surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery 
was being measured under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus arising 
on the revaluation is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. With effect from 01 
January 2018, Companies Act, 2017 has become applicable and section 235 of the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of 
fixed assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly the 
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management has changed the accounting policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus 
on land, building, and plant and machinery in accordance with the requirements of IAS 
16 “Property, plant and equipment”. The effect of this change in accounting policy, which 
is applied with retrospective effect, has resulted in transfer of surplus on revaluation of 
land, building on freehold land, and plant and machinery - net of tax to equity which was 
previously being presented outside equity.							     
					  

4.2	 Employee benefits

	 Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company and measured on an undiscounted basis. The 
accounting policy for employee retirement benefits is described below:				  
								     

4.2.1	 Staff provident fund (Retirement benefit)

	 The Company operates a recognized provident fund as a defined contribution plan for 
employees who fulfil conditions laid down in the trust deed. Provision is made in the 
financial statements for the amount payable by the Company to the fund in this regard. 
Contribution is made to the fund equally by the Company and the employees at the rate of 
10% of basic salary.										        
		

4.2.2	 Compensated absences

	 The Company provides for compensated absences for its employees on unavailed balance 
of leave in the period in which leave is earned and the charge is recognized in the profit or 
loss account.											         
	

4.3	 Taxation
							    
	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized 

in the profit or loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income or equity respectively.									       
			

4.3.1	 Current taxation

	 Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance 
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated 
using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted 
after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current 
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in 
previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.		
	

	 The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current and prior periods is recognized 
as liability. Any excess amount paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior 
periods is recognized as an asset.		
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4.3.2	 Deferred taxation

	 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet approach providing for temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred 
taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in 
accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can 
be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.			 
									      

4.4.	 Property, plant and equipment

4.4.1	 Owned 

	 Property, plant and equipment of the Company other than freehold land, building on 
freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount carried out by 
independent valuers by reference to its current market price less impairment loss, if any. 
Building on freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amount carried 
out by independent valuers by reference to its current market price less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.  Cost in relation to property, plant and equipment 
comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. Revaluation is carried out every 
five years unless earlier revaluation is necessitated. 						    
						   

	 Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis and charged to profit or loss account to 
write off the depreciable amount of each asset, except for freehold land, over its estimated 
useful life at the rates specified in note 12 to these financial statements. Depreciation on 
depreciable assets is commenced from the date asset is available for use up to the date 
when asset is retired. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated, 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued 
amount.											        
	

	 Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are 
credited to surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Decreases that offset 
previous increases of the same assets are charged against this surplus, all other decreases 
are charged to profit or loss account. Each year the difference between depreciation based 
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the profit and loss, and depreciation 
based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from ‘surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment’ to ‘equity’. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred income tax.					   
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	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss account as and when incurred. 		
										       

	 Gain and loss on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are 
recognised net within “other income / other expenses” in profit or loss account. When 
revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment, net of deferred tax, is transferred directly to equity.				  
								     

4.4.2	 Capital work in progress

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists 
of all expenditures and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during 
installations and construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and 
equipment as and when assets are available for use.						    
						   

4.5	 Intangibles

	 Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets with finite useful life 
are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three years. 
Amortisation of intangible assets is commenced from the date an asset is capitalized.

4.6	 Financial instruments

	 All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The Company 
de-recognizes a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and only when, the 
enterprise looses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion 
of financial asset. A financial liability or part of financial liability is de-recognized from the 
balance sheet, when and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition or 
de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss account 
currently.											         
	

	 Significant financial assets include long term deposits, short term investments, trade debts, 
loans and advances, other receivables, mark-up accrued and cash and bank balances. 	
	

	 Significant financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
agreements entered into. Significant financial liabilities include trade and other payables, 
short term borrowings and accrued markup.							     
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4.7	 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
 
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 

the balance sheet only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts and intends to either settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.									       
			

4.8	 Investments

4.8.1	 Investments in subsidiaries
	�
	 Investments in subsidiaries are initially valued at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the 

Company reviews the carrying amount of the investment to assess whether there is any 
indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss, if any. 											         
	

4.8.2	 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

	 These include investments classified as held for trading or upon initial recognition are 
designated by the Company at fair value through profit or loss. Investments which are 
acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short term fluctuations in 
price or dealer’s margin  are classified as held for trading. After initial recognition, these 
are stated at fair values with any resulting gains and losses recognized directly in profit 
or loss account. Fair value of investments is their quoted bid price at the reporting date. 
Transaction costs are charged to profit or loss account.						    
						   

4.9	 Loans and receivables

	 These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. At initial recognition these financial assets are measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method less impairment loss, if any.						    
	

		 Trade debts

	 Trade debts are stated initially at the fair value, subsequent to initial recognition. These 
are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate provision for impairment, 
known impaired receivables are written off, while receivables considered doubtful are fully 
provided for.											         
	

	 The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Company’s assessment at the 
collectability of counterparty accounts. The Company regularly reviews its trade debts 
that remain outstanding past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance 
and potential write-offs by considering facts such as historical experience, credit quality, 
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age of the accounts receivable balances and current economic conditions that may effect 
customers ability to pay.										       
				 

4.10	 Settlement date accounting

	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade dates.			
									      

4.11	 Trade and other payables

	 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of 
the consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received.				  
								     

	 Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been 
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account payables are classified 
as current liabilities if amount is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating 
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.		
										       

4.12	 Provisions 

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimate.										        
		

4.13	 Foreign currency

	 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange 
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into 
rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are translated into 
rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined. Exchange 
gains and losses are included in the profit or loss account.						   
						   

4.14	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost except for items in 
transits which are stated at cost incurred up to the reporting date less impairment, if any. For 
items which are slow moving and/or identified as surplus to the Company’s requirements, 
adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated net realizable value. 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares parts and loose tools on a 
regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.						    
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4.15	 Stocks in trade

	 Stocks are valued at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined 
as follows:											         
	

	 Raw and Packing materials	 - at moving average cost
	 Work in process  		  - at weighted average cost
	 Finished goods 			   - at moving average cost and
	 Finished goods for resale	 - at weighted average cost of purchase
	
	 Cost of finished goods purchased for resale, and raw and packing materials comprise of 

purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the material to its present location and 
condition. Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises of raw and packing 
materials and applicable overheads. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.						    
						   

4.16	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in statement of financial position at cost. For the 
purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash at 
banks and outstanding balance of short term borrowing facilities.					   
							    

4.17	 Borrowings

	 Loans and borrowings are classified as ‘financial liabilities at amortized cost’. On initial 
recognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, 
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at 
amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the 
profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.		
											        

	 Finance cost are accounted for on accrual basis and are reported under accrued markup to 
the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.							     
					  

	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has as unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the balance sheet 
date.											         
	

4.18	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of 
products, net of sales returns, discounts and commission. Revenue is recognized when the 
goods are dispatched and title passes to the customer, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of 
revenue, and the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be measured reliably and 
there is no continuing management involvement.						   
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4.19	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing 
costs are recognized in profit or loss account as incurred.						    
						   

4.20	 Other income 

	 Other income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, exchange 
gain and changes in the fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. 
Income on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal 
outstanding and the applicable rate of return. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported 
on a net basis.											         
	

	 Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when the right to receive 
is established.											         
	

	 Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for on disposal of investments.		
										       

4.21	 Impairment

	 Financial assets

	 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence that it is impaired. Individually significant financial assets are tested for 
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively 
in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. A financial asset is considered to be 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect 
on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.							     
					  

	 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment loss in respect of 
a financial asset measured at fair value is determined by reference to that fair value. All 
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss account. An impairment loss is reversed 
if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset’s 
carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.			 
									      

	 Non financial assets

	 The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and 
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deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or 
cash generating unit.										        
		

	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating 
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or 
loss account. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated 
to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.						    
						   

4.22	 Earnings per share (EPS)

	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.		
										       

4.23	 Dividend distribution

	 Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial 
statements in the period in which it is approved.							     
					  

4.24	 Operating lease 

	 Lease where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 
lessor is classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating lease are charged to 
profit or loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic 
basis is representative of the time pattern of the Company’s benefit.				  
								     

4.25	 Segment Reporting

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is 
responsible for allocating resources and accessing performance of the operating segments, 
has been identified as the Board of Director of the Company that make strategic decisions. 
These financial statements are prepared on the basis of single reportable segment as the 
Board of Directors views the Company’s operations as one reportable segment.			 
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5.	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

	 1,441,952 (2017: 1,441,952) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid in cash					   
							     

	 119,600 (2017: 119,600) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
issued in lieu of NWF Industries Limited and Sargodha 
Oil and Flour Mills Limited since merged			 
	

	 28,625,289 (2017: 28,625,289) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each issued as fully paid bonus shares

	 KFW Factors (Private) Limited, an associated company holds 8,286,942 (2017: 8,286,942) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10 each of the Holding Company.							     
						    

6.	 Capital reserve

	 This represents capital reserve which arose on conversion of shares of NWF Industries Limited and 
Sargodha Oil and Flour Mills Limited, since merged.	

2018
 Rupees 

  14,419,520 

 1,196,000 

 286,252,890 
 301,868,410 

2017
 Rupees 

 

	   14,419,520 

 1,196,000 

 286,252,890 
 301,868,410 
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7		  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
		  equipment - net of tax 

		  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
		  equipment as at 01 July						    
		
		  Surplus transferred to equity on account 	of incremental 
		     depreciation charged during the year net of deferred tax	
		  Related deferred tax liability					   
			 
								      
								      
		  Surplus transferred to equity:					   

- on account of disposal during the year net of 
			     deferred tax						    

- Related deferred tax liability				  
				  

								      
		  Revaluation Surplus					   
	

	 Related deferred tax liability:					   
		  - On revaluation as at 01 July				  
		  - Transferred / recognized					   
			   - on disposals during the year				  
			   - on account of incremental depreciation 		
			     charged during the year				  
			   - tax rate adjustment					   
			 
		  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 			 
		      equipment as at 30 June	

2017
 Rupees 

 

 933,032,737 

 (26,633,557)
 (11,397,872)
 (38,031,429)

 -   
 -   
 -   

 895,001,308 

 (100,235,652)

 -   

 11,397,872 
 1,361,425 

 (87,476,355)

 807,524,953 

2018
 Rupees 

  895,001,308 

 (27,011,229)
 (11,020,200)
 (38,031,429)

 1,017 
 415 

 1,432 

 856,971,311 

 (87,476,355)

 (415)

 11,020,200 
 9,135,444 

 (67,321,126)

 789,650,185 

	 The freehold land, building and plant and machinery were revalued by independent valuers in years 
1976, 1989, 2002, 2006, 2011 and 2016. These revaluations had resulted in a cumulative surplus of Rs. 
1,054 million, which has been included in the carrying values of free hold land, building and plant and 
machinery respectively and credited to the surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. The 
surplus is adjusted on disposal of revalued assets, if any, and through incremental depreciation, net of 
deferred tax charged to equity.
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8	 Deferred taxation 

	 Taxable temporary difference

	 Accelerated tax depreciation allowances	
Surplus on revaluation of property, 		
	 plant and equipment			 
Unrealized gain on short term 		
	 investments - mutual funds

 93,654,783 

 67,321,126 

 4,784,574 

 165,760,483 

Closing 

 -   

 (9,135,444)

 -   

 (9,135,444)

Equity

 14,084,507 

 (11,019,785)

 4,784,574 

 7,849,296 

Profit or loss

2018
(Reversal from) / charge to

---------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------

 79,570,276 

 87,476,355 

 -   

 167,046,631 

Opening

	 Taxable temporary difference

	 Accelerated tax depreciation allowances	
Surplus on revaluation of property, 		
	 plant and equipment

  79,570,276 

 87,476,355 

 167,046,631 

 Closing 

 -   

 (1,361,425)

 (1,361,425)

EquityProfit or loss

2017
(Reversal from) / charge to

---------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------

  48,955,423 

 100,235,652 

 149,191,075 

  30,614,853 

 (11,397,872)

 19,216,981 

Opening
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9		  Trade and other payables 

		  Trade creditors
		  Accrued liabilities
		  Advances from customers
		  Provision for compensated absences 
		  Central Research Fund
		  Workers’ Welfare Fund
		  Advances from employees against purchase of vehicles
		  Other payables

		  9.1	 Central Research Fund

			   Balance as at 01 July 
			   Provision for the year

			   Payments made during the year
			   Balance as at 30 June 

10		  Short term borrowings

		  Short term running finance - secured

		  10.1	 Particulars of borrowings

			   Interest / markup based financing
			   Islamic mode of financing

2017
 Rupees 

 
  420,783,911 

 78,435,514 
 102,146,513 
 20,483,086 
 6,048,836 

 10,028,086 
 40,334,282 
 4,350,951 

 682,611,179 

 28,795,204 
 6,048,836 

 34,844,040 
 (28,795,204)

 6,048,836 

 2,138,283 

 2,138,283 
 -   

 2,138,283 

2018
 Rupees 

  543,862,953 
 81,890,246 
 85,868,075 
 22,652,323 
 2,283,549 
 7,090,508 

 41,971,602 
 7,056,548 

 792,675,804 

  6,048,836 
 2,717,079 
 8,765,915 

 (6,482,366)
 2,283,549 

 96,852,363 

 60,508,717 
 36,343,646 
 96,852,363 

Note

9.1
27

27

10.2
10.3

		  10.2	 Under Mark up arrangements

	 The Company has short term running finance facilities available from various commercial 
banks under mark up arrangements having aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 750 million 
(2017: Rs. 750 million). These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from three months 
KIBOR plus 0.3% to  0.9% (2017: three months KIBOR plus 0.1% to 0.9%) per annum 
on the outstanding balances. Running finance facilities amounting to Rs. 450 million can 
interchangeably be utilized as non-funded facilities. Out of the aggregate facilities, Rs. 450 
million (2017: Rs. 450 million) are secured by first pari passu charge of Rs. 1,000 million 
over all present and future assets (current and fixed assets) of the Company (excluding land 
and building) and remaining Rs. 300 million (2017: Rs. 300 million) facility is secured by 
lien on Company’s short term investments (money market/income fund) which should be 
110% of the maximum limit allowed for utilization. Under this arrangement, short term 
investment of Rs. 333.33 million (2017: Rs. 207.75 million) in HBL funds as mentioned in 



 |  67   

note 20.1.1 is marked under lien. These facilities are renewable on annual basis latest by 
31 December 2018.									       
	

10.3	 Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Company has short term borrowing facility i.e. Running Musharakah available from 
Islamic bank under profit arrangements having sanctioned limit of Rs. 200 million (2017: 
Rs. 200 million). This facility carries profit rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.3% (2017: 
three months KIBOR plus 0.3% ) per annum on the outstanding balance. This facility can 
interchangeably be utilized as non-funded. This facility is secured by first pari passu charge 
over current assets of the Company. This facility is renewable on annual basis latest by 31 
July 2018.										        

										        
11		  Contingencies and commitments 

11.1	 Contingencies

	 The Company filed a suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging SRO related 
to pharmaceutical pricing issued by Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (“DRAP”) 
being ultra vires the constitution. The issue relates to fixation of prices of certain products 
of the Company and the SRO issued in this regard whereby the products of the Company 
were notified as controlled drugs. During the year, the matter was transferred to Honorable 
Supreme Court of Pakistan (“Supreme Court”). The Supreme Court on 06 August 2018 
ordered to resolve the matter, in line with mechanisms and procedures incorporated in 
the Drug Pricing Policy, 2018 issued by DRAP, within ten weeks from the date of the 
order. Till the resolution of the matter, the pricing issued by DRAP will remain frozen. The 
management based on obtained legal opinion believes that the Company has a strong case 
on merit and is likely to succeed in obtaining relief.					   
					   

11.2	 Commitments

11.2.1	 Letter of credits

11.2.1.1	Under Mark up arrangements

	 Out of the aggregate facility of Rs. 600 million (2017: Rs. 600 million) for opening letters 
of credit, the amount utilized as at 30 June 2018 for capital expenditure was Rs. 192.52 
million (2017: Rs. Nil) and for other than capital expenditure was Rs. 151.99 million (2017: 
Rs. 166.2 million). Out of these facilities, Rs. 300 million can interchangeably be utilized 
as running finance. These facilities are secured by first pari passu charge of Rs. 1,000 
million over all present and future assets (excluding land & building) of the Company and 
lien over import documents.									       
	

11.2.1.2	Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Company has facility i.e. letters of credit of Rs. 75 million (2017: Rs. 75 million) 
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2017
 Rupees 

 
  

2,349,059,821 
 217,262,169 

2,566,321,990 

2018
 Rupees 

  
2,546,322,823 
 102,893,283 

2,649,216,106 

Note

12.1
12.6

available from Islamic bank. The amount utilized as at 30 June 2018 for capital expenditure 
was Rs. 1.64 million (2017: Rs. Nil) and for other than capital expenditure was Rs. 54.87 
million (2017: Rs. 28.74 million). Lien is also marked over import documents.			 
							     

11.2.2	 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company

11.2.2.1	Under Mark up arrangements

	 Out of the aggregate facility of Rs. 325 million (2017: Rs.  25 million) for letter of guarantees 
(which is the sublimit of running finance), the amount utilized as at 30 June 2018 was Rs. 
62.39  million (2017: Rs. 9.82 million).								      
		

11.2.2.2	Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Company has facility i.e. letter of guarantee of Rs. 25 million (2017: Rs. 25 million) 
available from Islamic bank, the amount utilized at 30 June 2018 was Rs. 1.96 million 
(2017: Rs. 1.96 million).								      

12		  Property, plant and equipment 

		  Operating assets
		  Capital work in progress
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12.3	 The latest revaluation was carried on at 30 June 2016. As per the revaluation report, forced sale 
value of freehold land, buildings on free hold land and plant and machinery was Rs. 597.75 million, 
Rs. 526.28 million and Rs. 307.00 million respectively. 							     
							     

12.4	 Depreciation is allocated as under:

	 Cost of sales
	 Administrative expenses
	 Selling and distribution expenses

12.5	 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

12.1.1	 These include fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 74.57 million (2017: Rs. 64.08 million).

12.1.2	 Had there been no revaluation, carrying value of freehold land, building on free hold land and plant 
and machinery would have been as follows:								      
						    

	 Freehold land
	 Building on freehold land
	 Plant and machinery

12.2	 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

2017
 Rupees 

 
 73,111,635 

 391,065,829 
 694,454,657 

1,158,632,121 

 132,043,041 
 44,039,257 
 33,706,959 

 209,789,257 

 336,222 
 26,852 
 28,749 

 351 
 N/A 

 5,000 

 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 

Covered Area 
(square feet)

2018
 Rupees 

 116,611,635 
 463,617,811 
 800,113,598 

1,380,343,044 

 160,548,574 
 45,442,289 
 40,347,450 

 246,338,313 

  29.81 
 23.59 
 0.66 
 0.01 
 1.03 
 0.33 

 74,736 
 650,000 

 1,283,000 
 550,000 
 257,067 
 347,120 
 401,633 
 492,400 
 856,023 
 584,121 

 2,242,060 
 650,000 

 1,283,000 
 550,000 
 906,907 
 705,320 
 886,500 
 908,000 
 923,956 
 719,320 

 2,167,324 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 649,840 
 358,200 
 484,867 
 415,600 
 67,933 

 135,199 

 2,242,060 
 1,511,000 
 1,382,000 
 1,239,000 
 1,114,000 
 1,105,000 
 1,039,000 
 1,039,000 
 1,019,000 
 1,013,999 

------------------------------Rupees---------------------------

Ex Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Ex Employee
Ex Employee

 Mr. Farhan Rafique 
 Mr. Khalil Ahmad 
 Mr. Hassan Ali 
 Mr. Munawar Hayat 
 Mr. Muhammad Umer 
 Mr. Sajid Kamal 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Waseem Mirza 
 Mr. Muhammad Zia Ullah Khan 
 Mr. Waqar Ud Din Siddiqui 

Vehicles

 Toyota Corolla Altis 
 Suzuki Liana 
 Honda City 
 Suzuki Liana 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 

 Total area   
(acres)

Manufacturing facility		
Head office			
Registered office		
Vacant shop		
Vacant plot			
Guest house			 
	

Usage of immovable property

Main G.T Road, Amanghar, District Nowshera, KPK
5-K.M - Sunder Raiwind Road, Raiwind Lahore 
197-A, The Mall, Rawalpindi Cantt, Rawalpindi
Shop no. 2, Ground Floor, Ramzan Medical Centre, Lahore
Phase II Extension Defence House Authority, Islamabad
House No. 167, Khanuspur Ayubia, KPK

Location

Note

24
25
26

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets
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 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Insurance Claim 
 Insurance Claim 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 

 502,500 
 412,500 
 558,450 
 394,200 
 129,667 
 36,356 

 300,905 
 517,750 
 237,960 
 240,958 
 26,050 

 325,333 
 247,478 
 333,500 
 354,797 
 355,732 
 333,500 
 436,911 
 368,007 
 284,000 
 284,000 
 283,500 
 283,500 
 450,000 
 425,000 
 280,000 
 427,000 
 400,000 
 220,410 
 220,410 
 233,637 
 350,000 
 172,929 
 225,000 
 30,000 
 12,095 
 11,895 
 3,880 
 5,080 

 15,115 
 15,620 
 17,190 
 26,071 
 5,875 
 4,875 

 20,096 
 9,690 

 12,106 
 12,981 
 15,281 
 14,281 
 14,281 
 14,281 
 2,370 

 19,261 
 17,055 
 13,660 
 12,321 
 26,655 
 25,020 
 31,313 
 14,750 
 20,586 
 15,550 
 18,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 

 502,500 
 495,000 
 558,450 
 394,200 
 778,000 
 700,000 
 521,348 
 517,750 
 237,960 
 468,625 
 401,700 
 553,000 
 452,379 
 333,500 
 354,797 
 355,732 
 333,500 
 436,911 
 368,007 
 284,000 
 284,000 
 283,500 
 283,500 
 450,000 
 425,000 
 280,000 
 427,000 
 400,000 
 220,410 
 220,410 
 233,637 
 350,000 
 172,929 
 225,000 
 30,000 
 31,900 
 31,700 
 36,500 
 37,700 
 37,250 
 41,250 
 33,500 
 45,876 
 35,000 
 34,000 
 32,911 
 26,000 
 31,911 
 32,786 
 40,911 
 39,911 
 39,911 
 39,911 
 28,000 
 30,911 
 32,200 
 32,300 
 36,786 
 37,140 
 39,000 
 48,788 
 32,000 
 29,786 
 29,250 
 29,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 

 -   
 82,500 

 -   
 -   

 648,333 
 663,644 
 220,443 

 -   
 -   

 227,667 
 375,650 
 227,667 
 204,901 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 19,805 
 19,805 
 32,620 
 32,620 
 22,135 
 25,630 
 16,310 
 19,805 
 29,125 
 29,125 
 12,815 
 16,310 
 19,805 
 19,805 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 11,650 
 15,145 
 18,640 
 24,465 
 10,485 
 13,980 
 17,475 
 17,250 
 9,200 

 13,700 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 

 1,005,000 
 990,000 
 985,500 
 930,000 
 778,000 
 751,295 
 734,814 
 710,000 
 705,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 663,813 
 637,000 
 612,000 
 612,000 
 605,000 
 605,000 
 568,500 
 568,500 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 560,000 
 549,000 
 530,000 
 529,000 
 529,000 
 529,000 
 408,866 
 390,000 
 380,250 
 73,700 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,000 
 69,000 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 

Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
N/A
N/A
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

 Mr. Iqbal Ud Din 
 Mr. Asim Rafique 
 Mr. Sohail Mughal 
 Mr. Sibtul Hasan Saqib 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Yasir Islam  
 Mr. Mukhtar Kiyani 
 Mr. Raja Faheem Ahmad 
 Mr. Junaid Ikram 
 Mr. Usman Aqeel 
 Mr. Muhammad Nasir Zahoor 
 Mr. Shahid Ali Hanif 
 Mr. Khursheed Norojo 
 Mr. Muhammad Imitaiz Anwar 
 Mr. Sikandar Zaman 
 Mr. Muhammad Ali  
 Mr. Syed Shehnaz Ul hasan 
 Mr. Syed Faisal Saleem 
 Mr. Abdul Manan 
 Mr. Waseem Akram 
 Mr. Shakeel Ahmad 
 Mr. Maqbool Ali 
 Mr. Kamar Sohail Saeed Butt 
 Mr. Aleem Ahmad Khan 
 Mr. Asim Hussain 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Azhar Mehmood 
 Mr. Muhammad Imran Abbasi 
 Mr. Imran Qayyum 
 Mr. Mohsin Rasheed Bhatti 
 Mr. Farid Gul 
 Mr. Muhammad Shahid Saleem 
 Mr. Furqan Khaliq 
 Mr. Masood Ahmad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Syed Kashif Ur Rehman 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Adnan Ilyas Awan 
 Mr. Ghani Badshah 
 Mr. Sajid Zaman 
 Mr. Muhammad Sohail 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Waseem Umer 
 Mr. Muhammad Ibrar 
 Mr. Rizwan Saeed 
 Mr. Javed Hamid 
 Mr. Waseem Baig 
 Mr. Raees Abbas 

 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Cultus 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Alto 
 Suzuki Alto 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Suzuki Mehran 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets
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 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Insurance Claim 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Insurance Claim 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 

 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 

 Long Service 
Award 
 Written - off 

 Written - off 

 Written - off 

 23,975 
 18,023 
 19,893 
 3,304 

 30,204 
 33,500 
 19,000 
 32,250 
 17,549 
 2,193 
 3,104 

 11,600 
 3,480 

 23,283 
 16,362 
 31,450 
 17,000 
 54,000 
 35,000 
 54,000 
 30,000 
 19,985 
 11,528 
 9,724 

 10,724 
 8,724 
 9,092 
 8,378 
 9,092 
 9,237 
 9,237 

 31,660 
 6,000 

 18,250 
 16,000 
 13,000 
 23,740 
 15,786 
 17,700 
 11,000 

 17,460,176 

 1,933 
 5,000 
 6,933 

 -   

 -   

 (19,619)

 (215,613)

 17,231,877 

 10,941,817 

 34,250 
 23,730 
 25,600 
 63,500 
 30,204 
 33,500 
 19,000 
 32,250 
 62,000 
 35,000 
 35,911 
 37,000 
 28,880 
 63,500 
 16,362 
 31,450 
 17,000 
 54,000 
 35,000 
 54,000 
 30,000 
 19,985 
 24,700 
 21,250 
 22,250 
 20,250 
 16,500 
 15,786 
 16,500 
 15,000 
 15,000 
 31,660 
 6,000 

 18,250 
 16,000 
 13,000 
 23,740 
 15,786 
 17,700 
 11,000 

 25,401,641 

 10,000 
 5,000 

 15,000 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 25,416,641 

 15,801,732 

 10,275 
 5,707 
 5,707 

 60,196 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 44,451 
 32,807 
 32,807 
 25,400 
 25,400 
 40,217 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 13,172 
 11,526 
 11,526 
 11,526 
 7,408 
 7,408 
 7,408 
 5,763 
 5,763 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 7,941,465 

 8,067 
 -   

 8,067 

 -   

 -   

 19,619 

 215,613 

 8,184,764 

 4,859,915 

 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 66,885 
 65,900 
 65,900 
 65,900 
 64,500 
 63,501 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 62,900 
 62,900 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 54,000 
 50,490 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 

 39,253,633 

 48,376 
 52,722 

 101,098 

 739,000 

 876,172 

 168,200 

 244,089 

 41,382,192 

 29,656,323 

Employee
Auction
Auction
N/A
Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
N/A
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction

Ex Employee
Ex Employee

 Not 
Applicable 

 Not 
Applicable 

 Not 
Applicable 

 Not 
Applicable 

 Mr. Usman Akram 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Imran Ali 
 Mr. Ali Haider 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 
 Mr. Adeel Ahmed 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Usman Baig 
 Mr. Muzafar Hussain 
 Mr. Qaisar Khan 
 Mr. Ghulam Mustafa 
 Mr. Sohail Ahmad Shaik 
 Mr. Muhammad Rafique 
 Mr. Mumtaz Ahmad 
 Mr. Mansoor Ahmad Paracha 
 Mr. Muhammad Afaque Khan 
 Mr. Babar Baig 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Muhammad Babar 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Muhammad Babar 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 
 Mr. Liaqat Hussain 
 Mr. Jahanzaib 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 
 Mr. Zalmi Khan 
 Mr. Noor Muhammad Gul 
 Mr. Shahbaz Mashi 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Hassan Ali 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 

 Dr. Muhammad Asif Ijaz 
 Miss Nayyar Meraj 

 Mr. Sabir Hussain Butt 

 Not Applicable 

 Not Applicable 

 Not Applicable 

 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 Honda CD 70 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 
 YD 70 Dhoom 

Computers

 Laptop 
 Laptop 

Assets written off:

 Vehicles 

 Computers 

 Office equipment 

 Plant & machinery 

2018 Rupees

2017 Rupees

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets
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13	 Intangibles

	 13.1	 Computer softwares and 
		  software license fees

		  Cost

		  Balance as at 01 July 
		  Addition during the year
		  Balance as at 30 June 

		  Amortisation

		  Balance as at 01 July 
		  Amortisation for the year
		  Balance as at 30 June 

		  Net book value

12.6	 Capital work-in-progress

	 The movement in capital work in progress 
	 is as follows:

	 Balance as at 01 July
	 Additions
	 Transfers

	 Balance as at 30 June

12.6.1	 Capital work-in-progress comprises of:

	 Building and civil works
	 Plant and machinery
	 Advances to suppliers

12.6.1.1		 These represents plant and machinery and equipment in the course of development and 
		  installation.											         
												            	
12.6.1.2		 These are interest free in the normal course of business for machinery and equipment.

2017
 Rupees 

 

 348,082,370 
 326,129,941 

 (456,950,142)

 217,262,169 

 65,625,630 
 135,879,696 
 15,756,843 

 217,262,169 

2018
 Rupees 

 217,262,169 
 242,787,699 

 (357,156,585)

 102,893,283 

 3,192,751 
 63,068,421 
 36,632,111 

 102,893,283 

Note

12.6.1

12.6.1.1
12.6.1.2

2017
 Rupees 

 11,109,813 
 -   

 11,109,813 

 6,934,822 
 1,855,353 
 8,790,175 

 2,319,638 

2018
 Rupees

 11,109,813 
 1,740,976 

 12,850,789 

 8,790,175 
 2,044,342 

 10,834,517 

 2,016,272 

Note

13.1.1

25
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14	 Long term investments - related parties

	 Related parties - at cost

	 Farmacia (Partnership firm):
	 Capital held: 98% (2017: 98%)
	 Managing Partner - Osman Khalid Waheed

	 BF Biosciences Limited (unlisted subsidiary):
	 15,199,996 (2017: 15,199,996) fully paid
	 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
	 Equity held: 80% (2017: 80%)
	 Chief Executive Officer - Osman Khalid Waheed

  128,949,090 

 151,999,960 

 280,949,050 

 145,798,500 

 151,999,960 

 297,798,460 

14.1

14.2

15	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 

Stores
Spare parts
Loose tools
Stores in transit

16	 Stock in trade 

Raw and packing materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Stock in transit

2017
 Rupees 

 

 14,781,764 
 5,945,584 

 224,372 
 1,802,617 

 22,754,337 

 378,989,330 
 33,156,171 

1,079,226,890 
 54,664,677 

1,546,037,068 

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees 

 10,511,016 
 16,685,492 

 218,862 
 18,802,817 
 46,218,187 

 338,718,490 
 50,818,086 

 730,289,493 
 100,027,851 

1,219,853,920 

2018
 Rupees 

Note

16.1
16.2

Note

14.1	 This represents Company’s 98% share in “Farmacia”, a subsidiary partnership duly 
registered under the Partnership Act, 1932  and engaged in operating retail pharmacy. Share 
of profit, if any, for the year not withdrawn is reinvested in capital account of partnership.		
	

14.2	 BF Biosciences Limited has been set up for establishing a Biotech Pharmaceutical Plant 
to manufacture mainly Cancer and Hepatitis related medicines. The Company owns holds 
80% (2017: 80%) of equity of the subsidiary and the remaining 20% is held by Grupo 
Empresarial Bagó S.A., Spain.									       
			 

14.3	 These investments were made before the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 and the 
requirements of repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 were duly complied with at the time 
of investment.

13.1.1	 	 These include fully amortized assets amounting to Rs. 6.82 million (2017: Rs. 5.54 million). 
		  Intangibles are amortised at 33% (2017: 33%) on straight line basis.



 |  75   

Note

17.1

17.1

16.1	 The amount charged to profit and loss account on account of write down of finished goods 
to net realizable value amounts to Rs. 191.77 million (2017: Rs. 144.48 million).			 
									       

16.2	 It includes raw and packing material in transit amounting to Rs. 20.44 million (2017: Rs. 
1.19 million) and finished goods in transit amounting to Rs. 79.59 million (2017: 53.48 
million).

17	 Trade debts - considered good

	 Exports - secured, considered good
	 Unsecured - Considered good
	     - Exports
	     - Others

	 17.1	 Detail of trade debts on account of export sales:
		

		  Country
		  Sri Lanka
		  Myanmar
		  Sudan
		  Uzbekistan
		  Kenya
		  Afghanistan
		  Nigeria

2017
 Rupees 

 
 22,510,664 

 39,760,139 
 303,670,368 
 343,430,507 
 365,941,171 

2017
 Rupees 

 839,200 
 1,910,233 

 33,606,806 
 -   

 3,403,900 
 -   
 -   

 39,760,139 

2018
 Rupees 

 7,909,650 

 64,740,522 
 463,762,592 
 528,503,114 
 536,412,764 

2018
 Rupees 
 35,265,769 

 -   
 27,311,615 
 1,298,203 

 -   
 864,935 

 -   
 64,740,522 

Contracts
2017

 Rupees 
 22,510,664 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 22,510,664 

2018
 Rupees 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 6,269,400 
 -   

 1,640,250 
 7,909,650 

Confirmed LCs

18	 Loans and advances - considered good

	 Advances to employees - secured
	 Advances to suppliers - unsecured
	 Others

2017
 Rupees 

 13,991,693 
 57,958,111 

 968,647 
 72,918,451 

2018
 Rupees

 19,646,918 
 23,954,345 

 375,671 
 43,976,934 

Note

18.1
18.2

18.1	 Advances given to staff are in accordance with the Company’s policy and terms of 
employment contract. These advances are secured against provident fund. Advances to 
staff include amount due from executives of the Company of Rs. 2.13 million (2017: Rs. 
3.89 million).											         
	

18.2	 These are interest free in the ordinary course of business.
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19	 Deposits and prepayments 

	 Deposits - considered good
	     Earnest Money 
	     Security Margins 

	 Prepayments

	 19.1	 These are interest free and given in ordinary course of business.

 149,665,615 
 980,102 

 150,645,717 
 776,281 

 151,421,998 

 167,098,030 
 7,177,902 

 174,275,932 
 684,703 

 174,960,635 

20	 Other receivables 

	 Sales tax refundable - net
	 Worker’s profit participation fund
	 Export rebate
	 Others

	 20.1	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

		  Balance receivable / (payable) as at 01 July
		  Interest on funds utilized by the Company
		  Provision for the year

		  Payments made during the year
		  Balance as at 30 June

	 Last year, the fund balance was utilized by the Company for its own business and interest 
at the rate of 165% was credited to the fund. Interest was calculated at higher of 75% 
of dividend rate or 2.5% plus bank rate, as required under Companies Profits (Workers’ 
Participation) Act, 1968.									       
	

20.2	 This includes Rs. 60.86 million (2017: Nil) receivable on account of commission in the 
capacity of acting as an agent.

 8,809,800 
 1,529,028 

 -   
 256,700 

 10,595,528 

 (19,256,025)
 (2,308,053)

 (29,941,741)
 (51,505,819)

 53,034,847 
 1,529,028 

 8,760,977 
 8,918,108 
 5,252,893 

 69,534,001 
 92,465,979 

 1,529,028 
 -   

 (11,281,892)
 (9,752,864)

 18,670,972 
 8,918,108 

19.1

20.1

20.2

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees Note

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees Note
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21	 Short term investments 

	 Investments at fair value through profit 
	     or loss - Mutual Funds

	 Held for trading

	 21.1	 These investments are ‘held for trading’

		  Carrying value at 01 July
		  Acquisition during the year
		  Redemption during the year
		  Realized gain on sale of investments during the year
		  Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investment 	

	 during the year

		  Carrying and fair value of short term 
		  investments 

	 21.1.1	 Mutual fund wise detail is 	
	 as follows:

		  HBL Money Market Fund
		  MCB Cash Management 
		  Optimizer Fund
		  HBL Cash Fund

21.2	 Realized gain of Rs. 1.95 million (2017: Rs. 3.17 million) on sale of mutual funds and 
bonus dividend of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 12.29) has been recorded in “other income”. These 
investments and related gain is from non shariah compliant arrangement. These are marked 
under lien as mentioned in note 10.

2017
 Rupees 

 

 487,884,889 

 -   
 724,215,542 

 (239,587,784)
 3,171,520 

 85,611 

 487,884,889 

 207,745,379 

 125,017,910 
 155,121,600 
 487,884,889 

2017

2018
 Rupees 

 527,343,533 

 487,884,889 
 175,000,000 

 (156,626,731)
 1,947,077 

 19,138,298 

 527,343,533 

 218,732,153 

 176,329,065 
 132,282,315 
 527,343,533 

2018

 2,041,354 

 1,243,740 
 1,543,804 

2017

 2,041,354 

 1,664,517 
 1,248,377 

2018
Units

........…….Number……........ ........…….Number……........

 Fair value

Note

21.1

21.1.1

22	 Cash and bank balances 
	
	 Cash in hand
	 Cash at bank:    
	 Current accounts
	    - foreign currency
	    - local currency

	
	 Deposit accounts - local currency

2017
 Rupees

 6,947,754 

 11,397,194 
 63,479,949 
 74,877,143 

 53,492,280 
 135,317,177 

2018
 Rupees

 3,880,948 

 5,912,890 
 183,335,764 
 189,248,654 

 4,049,688 
 197,179,290 

Note

22.1

22.2
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22.1	 These include bank accounts of Rs. 0.67 million (2017: Rs. 0.67  million) maintained under 
Shariah compliant arrangements.								      
								      

22.2	 These include deposit accounts of Rs. 4.05 million (2017: Rs. 52.07 million) under mark 
up arrangements, which carry interest rates ranging from 3.5% - 4.25% (2017: 3.75% - 
5.4%) per annum.										        
											         

	 These also include deposit account of Rs. 0.001 million (2017: Rs. 1.42 million) under 
Shariah compliant arrangements, which carries profit rate of 2.40% (2017: 2.40% - 2.41%) 
per annum.

23.1	 This includes sale of both own manufactured and purchased products.

23	 Sales - net 
	
	  Gross sales: 
	     Local 
	     Export 

	 Less: 
	     Sales returns 
	     Discounts and commission 
	     Sales tax 

 4,476,139,346 
 180,179,417 

 4,656,318,763 

 (116,641,668)
 (214,315,750)
 (13,919,627)

 (344,877,045)
 4,311,441,718 

 4,635,493,115 
 145,351,460 

 4,780,844,575 

 (60,300,351)
 (234,849,356)
 (26,371,640)

 (321,521,347)
 4,459,323,228 

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees 
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24.2	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 7.95 million (2017: Rs. 6.98 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.

24	 Cost of sales 

	 Raw and packing materials consumed        
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits
	 Fuel and power
	 Repair and maintenance
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
	 Packing charges
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Printing and stationery
	 Postage and telephone
	 Insurance
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Canteen expenses
	 Security expenses
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Laboratory and other expenses

	 Work in process:
	    Opening
	    Closing

	 Cost of goods manufactured

	 Finished stock:
	 Opening 
	 Purchases made during the year
	 Closing

	
	
24.1	 Raw and packing materials consumed        
	
	 Opening
	 Purchases made during the year

	 Closing

2017
 Rupees 

 
 701,825,947 
 198,247,265 
 20,784,495 
 10,546,619 
 32,738,097 
 11,643,474 

 622,259 
 2,186,523 
 3,539,250 
 9,575,365 
 7,193,700 
 9,430,337 

 871,689 
 132,043,041 
 23,688,904 

 1,164,936,965 

 24,195,375 
 (33,156,171)
 (8,960,796)

 1,155,976,169 

 1,526,340,345 
 931,579,880 

 (1,079,226,890)
 1,378,693,335 
 2,534,669,504 

 301,363,782 
 779,451,495 

 1,080,815,277 
 (378,989,330)

 701,825,947 

2018
 Rupees 

 876,308,967 
 226,366,588 
 25,700,771 
 10,856,874 
 42,999,232 
 14,570,053 

 137,012 
 2,330,816 
 4,073,891 
 9,671,774 
 6,756,071 

 11,625,069 
 24,097 

 160,548,574 
 13,101,975 

 1,405,071,764 

 33,156,171 
 (50,818,086)
 (17,661,915)

 1,387,409,849 

 1,079,226,890 
 1,153,321,229 
 (730,289,493)
 1,502,258,626 
 2,889,668,475 

 378,989,330 
 836,038,127 

 1,215,027,457 
 (338,718,490)

 876,308,967 

Note

24.1
24.2

12.4
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25.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 7.53 million (2017: Rs. 6.46 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.

25.3	 Donations include the payment to following institution in which the director is interested:	
	

25	 Administrative expenses 

	 Salaries and other benefits
	 Directors fees and expenses
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Postage and telephone
	 Printing, stationery and office supplies
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Transportation
	 Legal and professional charges
	 Fuel and power
	 Auditors’ remuneration
	 Repair and maintenance
	 Fee and subscriptions
	 Donations
	 Insurance
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Amortisation of intangibles
	 Canteen expenses
	 Training expenses
	 Other expenses

	 25.2	 Auditors’ remuneration

		  Fee for annual audit
		  Audit of consolidated financial statements
		  Review of half yearly financial statements
		  Special certificates and others
		  Out-of-pocket expenses

2017
 Rupees 

 
 154,713,943 

 1,246,516 
 880,765 

 8,802,216 
 3,514,348 
 9,899,646 
 8,736,893 

 10,160,326 
 4,308,327 
 1,151,150 

 11,047,024 
 5,999,347 

 10,280,583 
 4,809,263 

 44,039,257 
 1,855,353 
 6,065,953 

 41,000 
 1,578,004 

 289,129,914 

 
  747,500 

 74,750 
 112,125 
 112,125 
 104,650 

 1,151,150 

2018
 Rupees 

 168,990,448 
 1,428,736 

 880,708 
 7,038,278 
 4,208,797 

 14,252,215 
 8,768,139 
 6,480,137 
 4,605,442 
 1,289,061 

 12,225,678 
 4,008,785 
 8,012,070 
 4,131,175 

 45,442,289 
 2,044,342 
 7,010,884 

 205,794 
 2,073,059 

 303,096,037 

 

  784,900 
 78,500 

 117,750 
 117,750 
 190,161 

 1,289,061 

Note

25.1

25.2 

25.3 & 25.4

12.4

2017
 Rupees

 2,000,000 

2018
 Rupees 

 3,000,000 

Name of donee

National 
Management 
Foundation 
(LUMS)

Nature of interest 
in donee

Trustee

Name of 
director

Mr. Osman 
Khalid Waheed 
(Director)

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees 
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26	 Selling and distribution expenses

	 Salaries and other benefits
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Trade debts written off
	 Earnest money written off
	 Fuel and power
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Sales promotion and advertisement
	 Freight and forwarding
	 Printing and stationary
	 Postage and telephone
	 Fee and subscription
	 Insurance
	 Repairs and maintenance
	 Conferences, seminars and training 
	 Medical research and patient care
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Other expenses
	 Service charges on sales

	 25.4	 Donations to following organizations exceeds 
		  Rs. 0.5 million:

		  - Cancer Care Hospital and Research Center 		
	    Foundation

		  - Cultoor (Private) Limited
		  - Liver Foundation Trust
		  - Pakistan Center for Philanthropy
		  - The Citizens Foundation
		  - Gujranwala Liver foundation, The Health 		

	    Foundation
		  - University of Kelaniya
		  - Ali Institute of Education
		  - Lahore Literary Festival (Society)
		  - NIBD Welfare Society
		  - Okara Patient Welfare Association

2017
 Rupees 

 

 -   

 -   
 600,000 

 -   
 -   

 1,287,000 
 875,852 

 1,020,000 
 1,000,000 
 1,100,000 
 1,411,200 

2018
 Rupees 

 1,000,000 

 543,478 
 600,000 

 1,000,000 
 665,000 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Note

26.1

12.4

2017
 Rupees 

 
 353,243,056 
 171,174,002 
 15,350,017 

 -   
 5,292,778 
 8,272,602 

 100,835,213 
 18,637,693 
 6,257,356 

 15,930,808 
 11,378,019 
 19,567,917 
 6,149,636 

 103,128,608 
 15,963,754 
 33,706,959 

 808,306 
 28,066,661 

 913,763,385 

2018
 Rupees 

 451,696,775 
 176,642,148 

 -   
 7,430,890 
 5,759,696 
 9,461,430 

 134,051,050 
 19,227,089 
 4,549,210 

 14,426,746 
 15,264,356 
 20,506,859 
 12,949,955 

 120,883,617 
 41,197,682 
 40,347,450 
 1,764,160 

 50,185,544 
 1,126,344,657 

26.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 14.38 million (2017: Rs. 12.96 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.
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	 28.1	 From financial assets

		  From related party

		  Share in profit of Farmacia - 98% owned 
		  partnership firm

		  Others

		  Profit on deposits with banks
		  Dividend income
		  Unrealized gain on re-measurement of short
		  term investments to fair value
		  Profit on term deposits
		  Realized gain on sale of short term 
		  investments

 17,638,916 

 2,226,767 
 12,287,391 

 85,611 
 834,747 

 3,171,520 

 18,606,036 
 36,244,952 

 16,849,410 

 1,286,407 
 -   

 19,138,298 
 -   

 1,947,077 

 22,371,782 
 39,221,192 

28.1.1

21.1

21.1

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

28.1.1	 These include profit of Rs. 0.02 million (2017: Rs. 0.05 million) earned on deposit account 
maintained under Shariah compliant arrangements.

27.1	 Loss incurred during the year was due to actual currency fluctuation.

28	 Other income 

	 From financial assets
	 From non financial assets

27	 Other expenses

	 Exchange loss-net
	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund 
	 Central Research Fund

 36,244,952 
 54,957,554 
 91,202,506 

 39,221,192 
 89,865,690 

 129,086,882 

 551,250 
 29,941,741 
 10,028,086 
 6,048,836 

 46,569,913 

 29,897,914 
 11,281,892 
 7,090,508 
 2,717,079 

 50,987,393 

28.1
28.2

27.1
20.1

9
9.1
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2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees

 10,941,817 
 -   

 662,787 

 43,352,950 

 54,957,554 

12.5

20.2

 1 17,231,877 
 7,029,886 

 65,603,927 

 -   

 89,865,690 

29.1	 This includes markup paid under Shariah compliant arrangements amounting to Rs. 1.59 
million (2017: Rs. 0.16 million) against facilities of short term borrowings.

29	 Finance cost

	 Mark-up on bank financing
	 Bank charges
	 Interest on Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

 4,156,090 
 9,829,430 
 2,308,053 

 16,293,573 

 5,530,864 
 5,517,238 

 -   
 11,048,102 

29.1

20.1

30	 Taxation 

	 Current
	    -   For the year
	    -   For prior years

	 Deferred
	    -   For the year

 189,336,244 
 -   

 19,216,981 
 208,553,225 

 101,991,249 
 2,019,097 

 7,849,296 
 111,859,642 

	 28.2	 From non financial assets

		  Others
		  Gain on sale of property, plant and
		     equipment - net of write off
		  Export rebate
		  Commission income
		  Workers’ Welfare Fund (prior years’) 	

	    no longer payable written back
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2018
 Rupees

207,265,446 

30%

2018
 Rupees

 62,179,634 
 69,322,526 

 (23,015,088)
 9,622,490 

 -   
 (8,269,017)

 2,019,097 
 -   

 49,680,008 
 111,859,642 

30.2	 The provision for current taxation represent tax under the normal tax regime at the rate of 
30% of taxable income (2017: 31%) and final taxes paid under final tax regime as adjusted 
by tax credits available under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.					   
		

30.3	 As per management’s assessment, the provision for tax made in the financial statements is 
sufficient. A comparison of last three years’ of income tax provisions with tax assessment  
is presented below:

30.4	 As explained in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors 
in their meeting held on 25 September 2018 has recommended sufficient cash dividend 
for the year ended 30 June 2018 which complies with the requirements of sections 5A of 
the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax on non-distribution of 
dividend has been recognized in these unconsolidated financial statements.

	 Tax Years
	 2015
	 2016
	 2017

 Tax as per 
assessment / 

return 
 Rupees 

 344,091,729 
 475,342,236 
 207,752,145 

 Tax provision 
as per financial 

statements 
Rupees 

  336,832,137 
 527,715,381 
 189,336,244 

 - - - - - (Percentage) - - - - -

	 30.1	 Tax charge reconciliation 

		  Numerical reconciliation between tax 		
	 expense and accounting profit:

		  Profit before taxation

		  Applicable tax rate as per Income Tax 		
	 Ordinance, 2001

		  Tax on accounting profit
		  Effect of final tax regime
		  Effect of tax credit
		  Not adjustable for tax purposes
		  Effect of super tax
		  Effect of proration and tax rate adjustment
		  Prior year tax adjustment
		  Effect of prior years’ reversal of Workers’ 	

	    Welfare Fund

2017
 Rupees

602,217,935 

31%

2017
 Rupees

 186,687,560 
 54,241,670 

 (36,611,254)
 (2,261,881)
 19,936,544 

 -   
 -   

 (13,439,414)

 21,865,665 
 208,553,225 



 |  85   

31.1	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share as the Group has no commitment 
for potentially issuable shares.

31	 Earnings per share - basic and diluted 

	 Profit after taxation for distribution to 
	   ordinary shareholders
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
	 Basic and diluted earnings per share

	 Managerial remuneration
	 Utilities
	 LFA
	 Bonus
	 Contribution to provident fund

	 Numbers

32	 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Executive Director and Executives

2017
 

393,664,710
30,186,841
13.04

 156,574,039 
 -   

 8,065,428 
 20,091,464 
 8,590,556 

 193,321,487 

36

 Executives 

2018
 

95,405,804
30,186,841
3.16

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

Executive
Director

---------------------Rupees---------------------

2018

 15,759,021 
 -   

 1,272,513 
 2,356,506 

 966,927 
 20,354,967 

1

 Chief 
Executive 

Rupees
Numbers

Rupees

	 In addition, the Chief Executive and certain executives of the Company are allowed free use of the 
Company’s vehicles. 											         
	

	 The Company has 6 (2017: 6) non executive directors. Non executive directors are not paid 
any remuneration or benefits other than the meeting fee and reimbursement of expenses. All the 
members of the Board of Directors were paid Rs. 426,908 (2017: Rs. 330,000) as meeting fee 
and Rs. 1,001,828 (2017: Rs. 916,516 ) as reimbursement of expenses for attending the Board of 
Directors’ meetings.

	 Managerial remuneration
	 Utilities
	 LFA
	 Bonus
	 Contribution to provident fund

	 Numbers

 213,319,908 
 -   

 12,570,864 
 31,007,659 
 11,068,434 

 267,966,865 

101 

 Executives 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

Executive
Director

---------------------Rupees---------------------

2017

 14,571,032 
 -   

 1,178,253 
 3,534,759 

 912,192 
 20,196,236 

1

 Chief 
Executive 
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33	 Related party transactions

	 The Company’s related parties include subsidiaries, associated company, entities over which 
directors are able to exercise influence, staff retirement fund, directors and key management 
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various 
related parties. Balances with the related parties are shown in respective notes in the unconsolidated 
financial statements. Other significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

	 Farmacia - 98% owned subsidiary partnership firm

	 Sale of medicines
	 Payment received from Farmacia against sale of medicine
	 Rentals paid
	 Share of profit reinvested 

	 BF Biosciences Limited - 80% owned subsidiary company

	 Sale of finished goods
	 Payment received
	 Purchase of goods
	 Payment made
	 Marketing fee
	 Expenses incurred 
	 Expenses paid

	 Other related parties

	 Contribution towards employees’ provident fund
	 Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of 
	    key management personnel - note 32
	 Dividend to KFW Factors (Private) Limited - associated
	    company (27% equity held)
	 Dividend to Directors

2017
 Rupees 

 31,377,008 
31,377,008 
3,348,259 

 17,638,916 

 98,818,067 
 98,818,067 
 2,971,772 
 2,971,772 
 7,947,136 

 17,129,851 
 25,076,987 

 26,391,122 

 135,750,539 

 124,304,130 
 44,193,540 

2018
 Rupees 

 41,757,660 
 41,757,660 
 3,683,077 

 16,849,410 

 121,812,937 
 121,812,937 

 6,934,592 
 6,934,592 
 3,248,350 
 4,593,657 
 7,842,007 

 29,861,021 

 124,477,674 

 33,147,768 
 11,141,136 

34	 Plant capacity and production

	 The  production capacity of the companies’ plants cannot be determined, as it is a multi-product 
production facility with varying manufacturing processes.
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35	 Number of employees

	 Total number of employees 
	    as at 30 June
	 Average number of employees 
	    during the year

876

855

945

911

183

180

200

192

36	 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Changes from financing cash flows

Finance cost paid
Dividends paid
Total changes from financing 
cash flows

Non-cash changes

Dividend approved
Interest / markup expense
Total non-cash changes

Closing as at 30 June 2018

 82,501,598 

 (12,161,240)
 (119,458,387)

 (131,619,627)

 120,747,364 
 11,048,102 

 131,795,466 

 82,677,437 

Total

2018
Liabilities

 1,646,851 

 (12,161,240)
 -   

 (12,161,240)

 -   
 11,048,102 
 11,048,102 

 533,713 

Accrued 
finance cost

 80,854,747 

 -   
 (119,458,387)

 (119,458,387)

 120,747,364 
 -   

 120,747,364 

 82,143,724 

Unclaimed 
dividend
---------------------Rupees---------------------

2017 2017
Factory employees Total employees
2018 2018
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37	 Disclosures relating to provident fund

Size of the fund / trust
Cost of investments made
Fair value of investment
Percentage of investments made

Break up of investment

Investment in listed equity securities
Investment in listed debt collective 
   investment schemes
Investment in listed equity collective 
   investment schemes
Investment in government securities
Special accounts in scheduled banks
Term deposit receipts
Others

Ferozsons Laboratories Limited - 
Parent Company
BF Biosciences Limited - Subsidiary
Farmacia - Partnership firm

Audited
2017

 Rupees 

 451,837,463 
 400,765,322 
 437,675,297 

97%

 42,141,560 

 70,093,653 
 96,208,127 

 39,876,875 
 45,275,787 

 144,079,295 
 -   

 437,675,297 

356,869,797

87,196,132
7,771,534

 451,837,463 

Rupees

Rupees

Un-audited
2018

 Rupees 

 495,100,285 
 464,279,730 
 480,070,316 

97%

9%

16%
21%

9%
10%
32%
0%
97%

79%

19%
2%

100%

% of size of 
fund

% of size of 
fund

Audited  2017

Audited  2017

 31,481,067 
 

150,094,307 
 104,424,097 

 
115,126,349 
 38,944,496 
 40,000,000 

 -   
 480,070,316 

391,358,275

94,839,371
8,902,639

 495,100,285 

Rupees

Rupees

6%

30%
21%

23%
8%
8%
0%
97%

79%

19%
2%

100%

% of size of 
fund

% of size of 
fund

Un-Audited 2018

Un-Audited 2018

37.1	 The provident fund trust is a common fund for employees of the Group. Entity wise break 
up of the fund as on 30 June is as follows:

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated there under.
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38	 Financial risk management 

	 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:			 
												          

	 - Credit risk
	 - Liquidity risk
	 - Market risk

	 This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the 
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s 
management of capital.											         
				  

	 Risk management framework

	 The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring 
the Company’s risk management policies. 								      
							     

	 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced 
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. All derivative activities for risk 
management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience 
and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes 
shall be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these 
risks.													           
		

	 The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
Company’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk 
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit committee is assisted 
in its oversight role by internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular 
and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported 
to the audit committee.										        
	

	 38.1	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if 
counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company’s credit risk arises 
from long term deposits, trade debts, other receivables, loans and advances, deposits, short 
term investments and balances with banks. The Company has no significant concentration 
of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of counter parties.
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	 Long term deposits 
	 Trade debts - considered good
	 Loans and advances - considered good
	 Short term deposits
	 Other receivables
	 Short term investments
	 Bank balances

	 38.1.2	 Credit quality of financial assets

		  Bank balances & short term investments

		 The credit quality of Company’s bank balances and short term investments can be assessed 
with reference to external credit rating agencies as follows:

2017
 Rupees 

 7,066,325 
 365,941,171 

 968,647 
 150,645,717 

 256,700 
 487,884,889 
 128,369,423 

 1,141,132,872 

2018
 Rupees 

 7,066,325 
 536,412,764 

 375,671 
 174,275,932 
 69,534,001 

 527,343,533 
 193,298,342 

 1,508,306,568 

JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS

JCR-VIS
PACRA
JCR-VIS

  119,428,056 
 47,343,460 
 22,518,002 
 2,738,069 

 673,754 
 578,821 

 9,552 
 8,628 

 193,298,342 

  218,732,153 
 176,329,065 
 132,282,315 
 527,343,533 

 720,641,875 

  37,863,242 
 33,591,323 
 27,794,370 
 21,958,006 
 4,459,190 
 2,670,831 

 9,698 
 22,763 

 128,369,423 

  207,745,379 
 125,017,910 
 155,121,600 
 487,884,889 

 616,254,312 

A-1+
 A1+ 
A1+
A-1+
A-1+
A1+
A1+
A-1+

N/A
N/A
N/A

AAA
AA+
AA+
AA+
AA+
AAA
AAA
AA

 AA(f) 
AA+(f)
 AA(f) 

Bank balances

Habib Bank Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Short term investments

HBL Money Market Fund
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund
HBL Cash Fund

Short term Long term
Rating 2018 2017Rating Agency

-------------------Rupees-----------------------
Institutions

	 38.1.1	 Exposure to credit risk

	 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was:
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Other

2018

Related 
party
2017

Related 
party
2018

 154,184,008 
 191,772,817 
 122,600,455 
 67,855,484 

 536,412,764 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 119,813,426 
 160,407,910 
 51,130,091 
 34,589,744 

 365,941,171 

Trade debts
 

The aging of trade debts at the 
reporting date was:

Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 120 days
Past due 121 - 365 days
More than 365 days

	 Trade debts are essentially due from government departments / projects and the Company is actively 
pursuing for recovery of debts and the Company does not expect these companies to fail to meet 
their obligations. 											         
			 

	 Deposits and other receivables are mostly due from Government Institutions. Based on past 
experience the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these 
financial assets. There are reasonable grounds to believe that these amounts will be recovered in 
short course of time.											         
			 

	 38.1.3	 Concentration of credit risk

	 Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors 
similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant 
in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. The Company’s portfolio of financial 
instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-
worthy counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.		
			

38.2	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as 
possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is 
not materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all obligations / commitments of the 
Company are short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity. 	

	 The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Other

2017
---------------------Rupees---------------------
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	 Financial liabilities

	 Trade and other payables
	 Unclaimed dividend
	 Short term borrowings - secured
	 Accrued mark-up

	 Financial liabilities

	 Trade and other payables
	 Unclaimed dividend
	 Short term borrowings - secured
	 Accrued mark-up

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

More than 
5 years

More than 
5 years

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

One to five 
years

One to five 
years

---------------------Rupees---------------------

---------------------Rupees---------------------

2018

2017

 655,462,070 
 82,143,724 
 96,852,363 

 533,713 
 834,991,870 

 524,053,462 
 80,854,747 
 2,138,283 
 1,646,851 

 608,693,343 

 655,462,070 
 82,143,724 
 96,852,363 

 533,713 
 834,991,870 

 524,053,462 
 80,854,747 
 2,138,283 
 1,646,851 

 608,693,343 

 Less than 
one year 

 Less than one 
year 

Carrying 
amount

Carrying 
amount

	 38.3	 Market risk
		

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency, interest rates and equity price that will 
effect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.			
											         

	 Market risk comprises of three types of risks:

	 -  currency risk. 
	 -  interest rate risk
	 -  other price risk

38.3.1	 Currency risk

	 Pakistani Rupee is the functional currency of the Company and exposure arises from 
transactions and balances in currencies other than Pakistani Rupee as foreign exchange 
rate fluctuations may create unwanted and unpredictable earnings and cash flow volatility. 
The Company’s potential currency exposure comprises of:

	 -	 Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items.
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Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables
Trade receivables
Gross balance sheet 
  exposure

Cash and bank balances
Trade and other payables
Trade receivables
Gross balance sheet 
  exposure

 1,930 
 -   
 -   

 1,930 

 2,860 
 -   
 -   

 2,860 

 Pound 
Sterling

 Pound 
Sterling

 3,800 
 -   

 825,623 
 829,423 

 -   
 -   

 1,243,594 
 1,243,594 

UAE Dirham

UAE Dirham

2018

2017

 17,609 
 (30,343)

 -   
 (12,734)

 50,832 
 -   
 -   

 50,832 

 46,057 
 (3,949,163)

 373,157 
 (3,529,949)

 69,034 
 (3,765,614)

 401,371 
 (3,295,209)

 8,519,849 
 (484,115,347)

 72,650,172 
 (402,945,326)

 13,733,532 
 (395,012,909)

 77,620,863 
 (303,658,514)

Euro

Euro

US Dollars

US Dollars

Rupees

Rupees

-	 Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and 
revenues.

											        
	 The potential currency exposures are discussed below:

	 Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

	 Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other 
than the functional currency of the Company are periodically restated to rupee equivalent, 
and the associated gain or loss is taken to the profit and loss account. The foreign currency 
risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management strategy.		
											         

	 Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

	 Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by the Company in currency other 
than the functional currency. Certain sales revenue is earned in currencies other than the 
functional currency of the Company. These currency risks are managed as a part of overall 
risk management strategy. The Company does not enter into forward exchange contracts.		
											         
Exposure to currency risk

	 The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date was as follows:
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 40,294,533 

2018 2017

(30,365,851)

Profit and loss

Rupees

Profit and loss account

	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
					   
	 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased  

loss for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 
2017.

	 Sensitivity analysis
				  
	 A 10% strengthening of the Pakistani Rupee against foreign currencies at the reporting date would 

have increased / (decreased) profit by the amounts shown below, mainly as a result of exchange 
losses / gains on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. This analysis 
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant. The analysis is 
performed on the same basis as for the previous year.

US Dollars
Euro
UAE Dirham
Pound Sterling

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets

Cash at bank - deposit accounts

Net Exposure

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

104.65
114.28
28.49
132.92

 

53,492,280 

 53,492,280 

2017

2017

Average rate

Carrying amount

113.14
134.84
30.80
152.78

 4,049,688 

 4,049,688 

2018

2018

104.90
120.03
28.56
136.55

3.49

2017

2017

121.50
141.45
33.08
159.28

3.14

2018

2018

Balance sheet date rate

Interest range / Effective rate

	 38.3.2	 Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 
to changes in market interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the 
Company’s significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

(Rupees)(in Percentage)
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 40,497 

 534,923 

100 bps
Increase

100 bps
Decrease

 (40,497)

 (534,923)

Profit or loss

Rupees

As at 30 June 2018

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

As at 30 June 2017

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

	 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year 
and assets / liabilities of the Company.

	 38.3.3	 Other price risk
		

	 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate 
risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, 
the Company diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks in accordance with the 
risk investment guidelines approved by the investment committee. The Company is not 
exposed to equity price risk since there are no investments in equity instruments traded in 
the market at the reporting date. The Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk 
since it does not hold any financial instrument based on commodity prices.

38.4	 Fair value of financial instruments

	 The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The carrying value of all 
financial assets and liabilities on the balance sheet approximate to their fair value.

38.4.1	 Fair values versus carrying amounts

	 The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are reasonable 
approximation of their fair value.

38.4.2	 Valuation of financial instruments

	 IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the company to classify fair value measurements 
and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the 
measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
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	 Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.
	
	 Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

	 Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes 
all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable 
data												          
		

	 Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market 
prices. For all other financial instruments the Company determines fair values using 
valuation techniques.										        
				  

	 Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. 
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free rates, bond and 
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. The 
objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the 
price of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by 
market participants acting at arm’s length.							     
							     

	 Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires 
significant unobservable inputs and a higher degree of management judgement and 
estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are 
usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination 
of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of 
appropriate discount rates, etc.
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	 38.5	 Capital management 

	 The Board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The 
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as 
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors 
the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.							     
							     

	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are: 

(i)	 to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, 
and											         
		

	 (ii)	 to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

	 The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and 
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new 
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.								      
						    

	 Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during 
the year nor the Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.		
	

39		  Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

		  The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 25 September 2018 has proposed 
a final cash dividend of Rs. 2 (2017: Rs. 4) per share, amounting to Rs. 60.37 million (2017: Rs. 
120.75 million) for approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 
October 2018.												          
			 

40		  Corresponding figures

		  Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison 
and better presentation as per reporting framework. 							     
								      

41		  Date of authorization for issue

		  These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 
of the Company on 25 September 2018.

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves 

Authorized share capital
	 50,000,000  (2017: 50,000,000) 		
	 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Accumulated profits
Capital reserve
Revaluation surplus on property, plant 
and equipment
Equity attributable to owners of the 
Company

Non-controlling interests

Non current liabilities 

Deferred taxation

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowings - secured
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

5

6
7

8

9
10

11

2018
 Rupees 

 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 4,194,798,630 

 321,843 
 921,179,842 

 5,418,168,725 

 184,360,696 
 5,602,529,421 

 222,502,168 

 960,178,380 
 100,525,853 
 82,143,724 

 539,624 
 1,143,387,581 

 6,968,419,170 

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 4,265,339,789 

 321,843 
 944,836,904 

 5,512,366,946 

 205,863,948 
 5,718,230,894 

 246,490,537 

 769,042,722 
 24,888,862 
 80,854,747 
 1,646,851 

 876,433,182 

 6,841,154,613 

2016
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 500,000,000 

 301,868,410 
 4,279,679,051 

 321,843 
 984,750,889 

 5,566,620,193 

 206,669,545 
 5,773,289,738 

 268,664,070 

 710,418,978 
 42,851,551 
 67,868,588 

 138,692 
 821,277,809 

 6,863,231,617 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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2016
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

  3,009,074,944 
 -   

 5,539,396 
 10,338,325 

 3,024,952,665 

 44,734,010 
 2,071,316,936 

 447,354,701 
 43,691,073 

 116,441,665 
 7,637,820 

 55,178,359 
 667,166,585 
 384,757,803 

 3,838,278,952 

 6,863,231,617 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangibles
Long term deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
Stock in trade
Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances - considered good
Deposits and prepayments 
Other receivables
Income tax - net
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Note

12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22

2018
 Rupees 

  3,075,164,414 
 78,545,641 
 2,357,632 

 11,613,325 
 3,167,681,012 

 71,802,216 
 1,346,996,263 

 604,467,682 
 48,225,856 

 191,428,941 
 92,304,228 

 212,899,309 
 941,746,224 
 290,867,439 

 3,800,738,158 

 6,968,419,170 

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

  3,082,250,380 
 -   

 3,172,498 
 11,053,325 

 3,096,476,203 

 47,409,138 
 1,764,902,522 

 429,773,583 
 77,152,418 

 170,092,045 
 9,003,812 

 146,034,709 
 855,943,421 
 244,366,762 

 3,744,678,410 

 6,841,154,613 

Director
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Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Profit from operations

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Taxation
(Loss) / profit after taxation

Attributable to:

Owners of the Group
Non-controlling interests
(Loss) / profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 Note

23
24

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

30 

31 

2018
 Rupees 

 5,057,118,829 
 (3,461,346,024)

 1,595,772,805 

 (346,745,044)
 (1,237,924,734)

 (53,114,850)
 139,585,855 
 97,574,032 

 (12,001,704)
 85,572,328 

 (102,583,964)
 (17,011,636)

 7,076,033 
 (24,087,669)
 (17,011,636)

 0.23 

2017
 Rupees 

 

 5,002,429,682 
 (3,090,966,615)
 1,911,463,067 

 (335,594,707)
 (1,023,216,945)

 (50,674,194)
 106,900,395 
 608,877,616 

 (17,701,190)
 591,176,426 

 (196,572,511)
 394,603,915 

395,765,198 
(1,161,283)

 394,603,915 

 13.11 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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(Loss) / profit after taxation

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account:

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Group
Non-controlling interests

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2018
 Rupees 

 (17,011,636)

 -   

 (17,011,636)

 7,076,033 
 (24,087,669)
 (17,011,636)

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 394,603,915 

 -   

 394,603,915 

 395,765,198 
 (1,161,283)

 394,603,915 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Balance as at 01 July 2016	
Impact of re-statement - note 4.1			 
Balance as at 01 July 2016 - restated		
	
Total comprehensive income for the year	
	
Surplus transferred to accumulated profit:
	
-	 on account of incremental depreciation on property, 

plant and equipment charged during the year - net 
of tax			

				  
Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus on 	
	 property, plant and equipment			 
	
				  
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized  
   directly in equity - Distributions	
				  
-		  Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016 at 

Rs. 12 per share			 
				  
-		  Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 at 

Rs. 3 per share			 
			 
				  
Balance as at 30 June 2017 - restated
				  
				  
Total comprehensive loss for the year	

Surplus transferred to accumulated profit:
		
-	 on account of incremental depreciation on property, 

plant and equipment charged during the year - net 
of tax	

-	 on account of disposal of fixed assets during the 
year - net of tax			 

				  
Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus on 	
	 property, plant and equipment			 
	
Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized 
   directly in equity - Distributions

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 at 
Rs. 4 per share			 
				  
Balance as at 30 June 2018	

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 4,279,679,051 
 -   

 4,279,679,051 

 395,765,198 

 42,698,155 

 -   

 (362,242,092)

 (90,560,523)

 (452,802,615)

 4,265,339,789 

 7,076,033 

 43,131,189 

 (1,017)

 43,130,172 

 -   

 (120,747,364)

 4,194,798,630 

Accumu-
lated profit Total

Non-
controlling 

interest
Total

 -   
 984,750,889 
 984,750,889 

 -   

 (42,698,155)

 2,784,170 

 -   

    
 -   

 944,836,904 

 -   

 (43,131,189)

 1,017 

 (43,130,172)

 19,473,110 

 -   

 921,179,842 

Revaluation 
surplus on 
Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Attributable to Owners of the Group

Capital reserve Revenue 
reserve

-----------------------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------------------------------

 321,843 
 -   
 321,843 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 321,843 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 321,843 

Capital 
reserve

 301,868,410 
 -   

 301,868,410 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 301,868,410 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 301,868,410 

Share 
capital

 4,581,869,304 
 984,750,889 

 5,566,620,193 

 395,765,198 

 -   

 2,784,170 

 (362,242,092)

 (90,560,523)

 (452,802,615)

 5,512,366,946 

 7,076,033 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 19,473,110 

 (120,747,364)

 5,418,168,725 

 168,681,094 
 37,988,451 

 206,669,545 

 (1,161,283)

 -   

 355,686 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 205,863,948 

 (24,087,669)

 -   

 -   

 -   

 2,584,417 

 -   

 184,360,696 

 4,750,550,398 
 1,022,739,340 
 5,773,289,738 

 394,603,915 

 -   

 3,139,856 

 (362,242,092)

 (90,560,523)

 (452,802,615)

 5,718,230,894 

 (17,011,636)

 -   

 -   

 -   

 22,057,527 

v

 (120,747,364)

 5,602,529,421 

Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non - cash and other items
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Amortisation of intangibles
	 Trade debts write off
	 Earnest money written off
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
	 Finance costs
	 Gain on re-measurement of short term investments to fair value
	 Dividend income
	 Gain on sale of short term investments
	 Profit on term deposits
	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
	 Central Research Fund
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund no longer payable written back
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
	 Stock in trade
	 Trade debts - considered good
	 Loans and advances - considered good
	 Deposits and prepayments
	 Other receivables
 
Increase in current liabilities
	 Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund paid
Workers’ Welfare Fund paid
Central Research Fund paid
Long term deposits - net
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of investment property 
Acquisition of intangibles 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on term deposits received
Short term investments - net
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Finance cost paid
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Cash and bank balances
Running finance

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

12.4

26
26

12.5

21.1

28

9.1

12.5

22
10

2018
 Rupees 

 85,572,328 

 360,840,669 
 2,555,842 

 -   
 7,430,890 

 (25,670,407)
 12,001,704 

 (31,061,670)
 -   

 (6,158,532)
 -   

 11,281,892 
 2,717,079 

 -   
 7,090,508 

 341,027,975 
 426,600,303 

 (24,393,078)
 417,906,259 

 (174,694,099)
 28,926,562 

 (28,767,786)
 (74,502,292)
 144,475,566 

 199,653,534 

 770,729,403 

 (171,379,406)
 (20,080,016)
 (11,601,068)
 (6,724,395)

 (560,000)
 560,384,518 

 (362,962,476)
 (78,545,641)
 (1,740,976)
 34,878,180 

 -   
 (48,582,601)

 (456,953,514)

 (13,108,931)
 (119,458,387)

 (132,567,318)
 (29,136,314)
 219,477,900 
 190,341,586 

 290,867,439 
 (100,525,853)

 190,341,586 

2017
 Rupees 

 

 591,176,426 

 326,993,412 
 2,366,898 

 15,356,017 
 -   

 (15,984,759)
 17,701,190 
 (5,047,578)

 (16,169,325)
 (19,983,118)

 (834,747)
 31,137,923 
 6,290,489 

 (43,352,950)
 11,601,068 

 310,074,520 
 901,250,946 

 (872,511)
 304,611,797 

 2,225,101 
 (33,461,345)
 (53,650,380)
 (1,963,244)

 216,889,418 

 165,075,142 

 1,283,215,506 

 (263,109,587)
 (65,439,531)
 (58,846,725)
 (31,284,809)

 (715,000)
 863,819,854 

 (407,298,834)
 -   
 -   

 23,114,745 
 1,522,185 

 (147,576,815)
 (530,238,719)

 (16,193,031)
 (439,816,456)

 (456,009,487)
 (122,428,352)

 341,906,252 
 219,477,900 

 244,366,762 
 (24,888,862)
 219,477,900 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1	 Reporting entity

		 Ferozsons Laboratories Limited (“the Holding Company”) was incorporated as a private limited 
company on 28 January 1954 and was converted into a public limited company on 08 September 
1960. The Holding Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and is primarily 
engaged in the imports, manufacture and sale of pharmaceuticals products and medical devices. 
Its registered office is situated at 197-A, The Mall, Rawalpindi and the manufacturing facility is 
located at Amangarh, Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtoon Khwa.

	 “The Group” consists of the following subsidiaries:

	

The registered office of the BF Biosciences Limited is situated at 197-A, The Mall, Rawalpindi and 
the production facility is located at 5 KM- Sunder Raiwind Road Lahore. 				  
									      

	 The head office of the Farmacia is situated at 76-B, Shah Jamal, Lahore.
						   
2	 Summary of significant transactions and events affecting the Group’s financial position and 

performance												          
	

		 The Group’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events 
and transactions during the reporting period:								      
					  

	 -	 The accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold 
land and plant and machinery changed during the year as detailed in note 4.1 to these 
consolidated financial statements.								      
				  

	 -	 The gross profit for the year has been affected primarily because of change in sales mix and 
devaluation of pakistani rupees thereby impacting the cost of imported raw material and 
imported finished goods purchased for resale. 							     
					   

	 -	 The Group has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 265.92 million in aggregate 

Company / Entity Country of 
incorporation Nature of business

 Effective holding % 

2018 2017

BF Biosciences 
Limited	 Pakistan Import, manufacturing and sale of 

pharmaceutical products.
80 80

Farmacia Pakistan Sale and distribution of medicines 
and other related products. 98 98
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(building and plant and machinery) for the expansion and modernization of its current 
manufacturing facility. The expansion has been financed through own sources. In addition 
the Group acquired 0.62 kanal of land situated at Civic Centre, Gulberg Greens, Islamabad 
and classified it as investment property.								      
				  

	 -	 Due to the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies 
Act, 2017, including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the 
Companies Act, 2017, the Holding Company has presented additional disclosures in these 
financial statements and represented certain comparative figures.					  
							     

	 -	 For a detailed discussion about the Group’s performance please refer to the Director’s 
report.											         

3	 Basis of preparation

		 3.1	 Separate financial statements

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the information available 
in the audited separate financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended 30 
June 2018 and the audited financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended 30 
June 2018.										        
	

3.2	 Statement of compliance 

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

-	 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies 
Act, 2017; and

		  -	 Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

		  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed.

3.3	 Standards, amendments and interpretations and forth coming requirements			
									       

3.3.1	 Standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year		
	 									       

		  During the year certain amendments to standards or new interpretations became effective. 
However, the amendments or interpretations did not have any material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group.	
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3.2.2	 New and revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting 
standards, and interpretations that are not yet effective					   
		  					   

		  The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:				  
	
-	 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - 

amendments to IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements 
and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. The 
amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments settled net of tax 
withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from 
cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification 
and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount 
of expense recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not 
likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.					  
						    

-	 Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ 
- effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that 
an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only 
when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or 
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the 
change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for the use of a 
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not 
likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.					  
						    

-	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’] (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization 
and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint 
ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture 
separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar 
election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate 
or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, 
to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate 
or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in 
subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate 
or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Group’s 
financial statements.									       
		

-	 IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018) clarifies which date 
should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves 
payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated 
using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is received or paid 
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and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction 
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition 
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on 
which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are 
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the 
transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The application 
of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.		
									       

-	 IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when 
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation 
requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of 
current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an 
impact on Group’s financial statements.							     
				  

-	 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 01 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. 
It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, 
IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. 
The Group is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes 
required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard.		
	

-	 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with 
Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 
2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes 
revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a 
new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and 
new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance 
on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The Group 
is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in 
classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected 
loss model on adoption of the standard.  						   
	

-	 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). 
IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 
4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating 
Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance 
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing 
its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to 
the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating 
leases. The Group is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact 
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of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to use assets and 
liabilities on adoption of the standard.						    
	

-	 Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term 
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on 
or after 01 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such 
entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in 
the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment 
and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 
28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The 
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.	
	

-	 Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or 
Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). 
The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined 
benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine 
its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset 
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the 
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application 
of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.	

		  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address 
amendments to following approved accounting standards:				  
	
-	 IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment 

aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in 
a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its 
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. 
A company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation 
when it obtains joint control of the business.

-	 IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences 
of dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) 
are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable 
profits.	

-	 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of 
general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the 
asset is ready for its intended use or sale.					   

		  The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 
2019 and are not likely to have an impact on Group’s financial statements.		
	

3.4	 Basis of measurement

	 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention 
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except for certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at revalued amounts 
and revaluation of certain financial instruments at fair values. The methods used to measure 
fair values are discussed further in their respective policy notes.

												          
3.5	 Functional and presentation currency

These  consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee (“Rs.”) which 
is the Group’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Rupees has been 
rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.			

3.6	 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting 
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making judgment about carrying value of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.	
											         
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and any future periods 
affected.
	
Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards 
that have significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements and estimates with 
a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in the ensuing 
paragraphs.										        
	

3.6.1	 Property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on 
regular basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts 
of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation charge and impairment.

3.6.2	 Intangibles

The Group reviews the rate of amortisation and value of intangible assets for possible 
impairment, on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of intangible assets with a corresponding affect on the amortisation 
charge and impairment.
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3.6.3	 Stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in trade

The Group reviews the stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in trade for possible 
impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect 
the carrying amounts of the respective items of stores, spare parts, loose tools and stock in 
trade with a corresponding affect on the provision and net realizable value.		
	
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.			
									       

3.6.4	 Provision against trade debts, advances and other receivables

The Group reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables to 
assess amount of bad debts and provision required there against on annual basis.			 
			 

3.6.5	 Provisions

Estimates of the amount of provisions recognized are based on current legal and constructive 
requirements. Because actual outflows can differ from estimates due to changes in laws, 
regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place 
many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are regularly reviewed and 
adjusted to take account of such changes.

3.6.6	 Impairment

The Group reviews carrying amounts of its assets including receivables and advances and 
cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable 
amount if there is any such indication.								      
								      

3.6.7	 Fair value of investments

The Group regularly reviews the fair value of investments, the estimate of fair values are 
directly linked to market value. Any change in estimate will effect the carrying value of 
investments with the corresponding impact on profit or loss.					   
	

3.6.8	 Taxation

The Group takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by appellate 
authorities. Instances where the Group’s view differs from the view taken by the income 
tax department at the assessment stage and the Group considers that its view on items of 
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.	

4	 Significant accounting policies
	
	 The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods 

presented in these financial statements, except as disclosed in note 4.1.				  
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	 4.1	 Changes in accounting policies

	 Upto 30 June 2017, surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery 
was being measured under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus arising 
on the revaluation is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. With effect from 01 
January 2018, Companies Act, 2017 has become applicable and section 235 of the repealed 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of fixed 
assets has not been carried forward in the Companies Act, 2017. Accordingly the Group has 
changed the accounting policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus on land, building 
and plant and machinery in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16 “Property, plant 
and equipment”. The effect of this change in accounting policy, which is applied with 
retrospective effect, has resulted in transfer of surplus on revaluation of land, building on 
freehold land and plant and machinery - net of tax to equity and non-controlling interest 
which was previously being presented outside equity.						    
	

4.2	 Basis of consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies.

4.2.1	 Subsidiaries

	 Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. 
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power to direct the activities of the entity. The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the 
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Holding Company obtains control, and 
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.				  
								     

	 The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-
line basis and the carrying values of the investments held by the Holding Company have 
been eliminated against the shareholders’ equity in the subsidiary companies. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as of the Holding 
Company, using consistent accounting policies except where specified otherwise.

4.2.2	 Non-controlling interests

	 Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the 
subsidiaries which are not owned by the Holding Company either directly or indirectly. 
Non-controlling interest is presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial 
statements.

	 Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.							     
					  

	 Changes in the Holding Company’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
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control are accounted for as a equity transactions.					   
4.2.3	 Loss of control

	 On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, 
any non controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in consolidated profit or loss. 
In addition, any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect 
of that subsidiary are reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss account. If the Group 
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at 
the date that control is lost. Subsequently that retained interest is accounted for as an equity-
accounted investee, joint venture or as an available for sale financial asset depending on the 
level of influence retained.									       
			

4.2.4	 Transactions eliminated on consolidation

	 Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated. 								      
				 

4.3	 Employee benefits
							    
	 Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services 

are rendered by employees of the Company and measured on an undiscounted basis. The 
accounting policy for employee retirement benefits is described below:				  
								     

4.3.1	 Staff provident fund (Retirement benefit)

	 The Holding Company and the subsidiary companies operates a recognized provident fund 
as a defined contribution plan for employees who fulfil conditions laid down in the trust 
deed. Provision is made in the financial statements for the amount payable by the Group 
to the fund in this regard. Contribution is made to the fund equally by the Group and the 
employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary.							     
					  

4.3.2	 Compensated absences

	 The Group provides for compensated absences for its employees on unavailed balance of 
leave in the period in which leave is earned and the charge is recognized in the profit or loss 
account.											        
	

4.4	 Taxation

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized 
in the profit or loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income or equity respectively.								      
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4.4.1	 Current taxation

	 Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance 
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated 
using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted 
after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current 
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in 
previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.			 
									      

	 The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current and prior periods is recognized 
as liability. Any excess amount paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior 
periods is recognized as an asset.									      
			

4.4.2	 Deferred taxation
			
	 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet approach providing for temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred 
taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in 
accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary 
differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can 
be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

4.5	 Property, plant and equipment

4.5.1	 Owned 

	 Property, plant and equipment of the Company other than freehold land, building on 
freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount carried out by 
independent valuers by reference to its current market price less impairment loss, if any. 
Building on freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amount carried 
out by independent valuers by reference to its current market price less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.  Cost in relation to property, plant and equipment 
comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. Revaluation is carried out every 
five years unless earlier revaluation is necessitated. 

	 Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis and charged to profit or loss account to 
write off the depreciable amount of each asset, except for freehold land, over its estimated 
useful life at the rates specified in note 12 to these financial statements. Depreciation on 
depreciable assets is commenced from the date asset is available for use up to the date 
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when asset is retired. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated, 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued 
amount.

										       
	 Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are 

credited to surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Decreases that offset 
previous increases of the same assets are charged against this surplus, all other decreases 
are charged to profit or loss account. Each year the difference between depreciation based 
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the profit and loss, and depreciation 
based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from ‘surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment’ to ‘equity’. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred income tax.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other 
repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss account as and when incurred.

	 Gain and loss on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 
the proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are 
recognised net within “other income / other expenses” in profit or loss account. When 
revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment, net of deferred tax, is transferred directly to equity.

4.5.2	 Capital work in progress

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists 
of all expenditures and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during 
installations and construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and 
equipment as and when assets are available for use.

4.6	 Investment property

	 Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration 
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.								      
				 

	 Depreciation is provided on a reducing balance method and charged to profit or loss account 
to write off the depreciable amount over its estimated useful life.					   
							    

	 Depreciation on depreciable assets is commenced from the date asset is available for use up 
to the date when asset is retired. The assets’ residual values and useful life are reviewed at 
reporting date and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.				  
								     

	 Any transfers between ‘investment properties’ and ‘property and equipment’ do not change 
the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that 
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property for measurement or disclosure purposes. 						    
						   

4.7	 Intangibles

	 Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets with finite useful life 
are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three years. 
Amortisation of intangible assets is commenced from the date an asset is capitalized.

4.8	 Financial instruments

	 All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. The Group de-recognizes 
a financial asset or a portion of financial asset when, and only when, the enterprise looses 
control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset or portion of financial 
asset. A financial liability or part of financial liability is de-recognized from the statement of 
financial position, when and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the recognition or 
de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss account 
currently.											         
	

	 Significant financial assets include long term deposits, short term investments, trade debts, 
loans and advances, other receivables, mark-up accrued and cash and bank balances. 	
	

	 Significant financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
agreements entered into. Significant financial liabilities include trade and other payables, 
short term borrowings and accrued markup.							     
	

4.9	 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
 
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 

statement of financial position only when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognized amounts and intends to either settle on a net basis or realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.								      
												         

4.10	 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

	 These include investments classified as held for trading or upon initial recognition are 
designated by the Group at fair value through profit or loss. Investments which are acquired 
principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short term fluctuations in price or 
dealer’s margin  are classified as held for trading. After initial recognition, these are stated at 
fair values with any resulting gains and losses recognized directly in profit or loss account. 
Fair value of investments is their quoted bid price at the reporting date. Transaction costs 
are charged to profit or loss account.								      
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4.11	 Loans and receivables

	 These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. At initial recognition these financial assets are measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method less impairment loss, if any.							     
					  

	 Trade debts

	 Trade debts are stated initially at the fair value, subsequent to initial recognition. These 
are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate provision for impairment, 
known impaired receivables are written off, while receivables considered doubtful are fully 
provided for.											         
	

	 The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the Group’s assessment at the collectability 
of counterparty accounts. The Group regularly reviews its trade debts that remain outstanding 
past their applicable payment terms and establishes allowance and potential write-offs by 
considering facts such as historical experience, credit quality, age of the accounts receivable 
balances and current economic conditions that may effect customers ability to pay.		
										       

4.12	 Settlement date accounting

	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade dates.			
									      

4.13	 Trade and other payables

	 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of 
the consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received.				  
								     

	 Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been 
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account payables are classified 
as current liabilities if amount is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating 
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.		
										       

4.14	 Provisions 

	 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can 
be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
current best estimate.										        
		

4.15	 Foreign currency

	 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange 
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rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into 
rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are translated into 
rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined. Exchange 
gains and losses are included in the profit or loss account currently.				  
								     

4.16	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost except for items in 
transits which are stated at cost incurred up to the reporting date less impairment, if any. 
For items which are slow moving and/or identified as surplus to the Group’s requirements, 
adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated net realizable value. 
The Group reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares parts and loose tools on a regular 
basis and provision is made for obsolescence.							     
					  

4.17	 Stocks in trade

	 Stocks are valued at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined 
as follows:											         
	

	 Raw and Packing materials	 - at moving average cost
	 Work in process  		  - at weighted average cost
	 Finished goods 			   - at moving average cost and
	 Finished goods for resale	 - at weighted average cost of purchase
	
	 Cost of finished goods purchased for resale and raw and packing materials comprises of 

purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the material to its present location and 
condition. Cost of manufactured work in progress and finished goods comprises of raw and 
packing materials and applicable overheads. Net realizable value signifies the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and 
estimated costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.					  
							    

4.18	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in statement of financial position at cost. For the 
purpose of cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash at 
banks and outstanding balance of short term borrowing facilities.					   
							    

4.19	 Borrowings

	 Loans and borrowings are classified as ‘financial liabilities at amortized cost’. On initial 
recognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, 
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at 
amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the 
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profit or loss account over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.		
										       

	 Finance cost are accounted for on accrual basis and are reported under accrued markup to 
the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.							     
					  

	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has as unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting date.		
										       

4.20	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for sale of 
products, net of sales returns, discounts and commission. Revenue is recognized when the 
goods are dispatched and title passes to the customer, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue, 
and the associated cost incurred, or to be incurred, can be measured reliably and there is no 
continuing management involvement.								      
				 

4.21	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing 
costs are recognized in profit or loss account as incurred.						    
						   

4.22	 Other income 

	 Other income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, exchange 
gain and changes in the fair value of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. 
Income on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal 
outstanding and the applicable rate of return. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported 
on a net basis.											         
	

	 Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when the right to receive 
is established.											         
	

	 Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for on disposal of investments.		
										       

4.23	 Impairment

	 Financial assets

	 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence that it is impaired. Individually significant financial assets are tested for 
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impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively 
in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. A financial asset is considered to be 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect 
on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.							     
					  

	 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment loss in respect of 
a financial asset measured at fair value is determined by reference to that fair value. All 
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss account. An impairment loss is reversed 
if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset’s 
carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.			 
									      

	 Non financial assets

	 The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and 
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount 
is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or 
cash generating unit.										        
		

	 An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating 
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or 
loss account. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated 
to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.						    
						   

4.24	 Dividend distribution

	 Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial 
statements in the period in which it is approved.							     
					  

4.25	 Operating lease 

	 Lease where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 
lessor is classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating lease are charged to 
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5	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

	 1,441,952 (2017: 1,441,952) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid in cash					   
							     

	 119,600 (2017: 119,600) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
issued in lieu of NWF Industries Limited and Sargodha 
Oil and Flour Mills Limited since merged			 
	

	 28,625,289 (2017: 28,625,289) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each issued as fully paid bonus shares

	 KFW Factors (Private) Limited, an associated company holds 8,286,942 (2017: 8,286,942) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10 each of the Holding Company.							     
						    

6	 Capital reserve

	 This represents capital reserve which arose on conversion of shares of NWF Industries Limited and 
Sargodha Oil and Flour Mills Limited, since merged.	

2018
 Rupees 

 14,419,520 

 1,196,000 

 286,252,890 
 301,868,410 

2017
 Rupees 

 

	  14,419,520 

 1,196,000 

 286,252,890 
 301,868,410 

profit or loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic 
basis is representative of the time pattern of the Group’s benefit.					   
							    

4.26	 Segment Reporting

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is 
responsible for allocating resources and accessing performance of the operating segments, 
has been identified as the Board of Director of the Company that make strategic decisions. 
These financial statements are prepared on the basis of single reportable segment as the 
Board of Directors views the Group’s operations as one reportable segment. All non-current 
assets of the Group are located in Pakistan and 100% of the revenue is derived from sale of 
pharmaceuticals products and medical devices.
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7	 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
	    equipment - net of tax 

	 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment as 
	    at 01 July

	 Surplus transferred to equity on account of incremental
	    depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax
	 -  Related deferred tax liability

	 Surplus transferred to equity:
	    -  on account of disposal of assets during the year net of 
	        deferred tax
	    -  Related deferred tax liability

	 Revaluation Surplus

	 Related deferred tax liability:
	    - On revaluation as at 01 July
	    - Transferred / recognized
	    - on disposals during the year
	    - on account of incremental depreciation 
	         charged during the year
	    - tax rate adjustment - Group
	    - tax rate adjustment - non controlling interest

	 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
	    and equipment as at 30 June

	 7.1	 Charge of incremental depreciation for the year net 
		     of tax attributable to:

		  Owners of the Group
		  Non-controlling interests

	 7.2	 Balance as at 30 June attributable to:

		  Owners of the Group
		  Non-controlling interests

2017
 Rupees 

 (Restated) 

 
1,205,064,027 

 (46,714,305)
 (20,102,767)
 (66,817,072)

 - 

 - 
 - 

1,138,246,955 

 (182,324,687)

 - 

 20,102,767 
 2,784,170 

 355,686 
 (159,082,064)

 979,164,891 

(42,698,155)
 (4,016,150)

 (46,714,305)

 944,836,904 
 34,327,987 

 979,164,891 

2018
 Rupees 

 
1,138,246,955 

 (47,161,179)
 (19,655,893)
 (66,817,072)

 1,017 

 415 
 1,432 

1,071,431,315 

 (159,082,064)

 (415)

 19,655,893 
 19,473,110 
 2,584,417 

 (117,369,059)

 954,062,256 

(43,131,189)
 (4,029,990)

 (47,161,179)

 921,179,842 
 32,882,414 

 954,062,256 

Note

7.1

7.2

	 The revaluations had resulted in a cumulative surplus of Rs. 1,340 million to date, which has been 
included in the carrying values of free hold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery 
respectively and credited  to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. The surplus 
is adjusted on disposal of revalued assets, if any, and through incremental depreciation, net of deferred 
tax charged to equity.
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8	 Deferred taxation 

	 Taxable temporary difference

	 Accelerated tax depreciation allowances	
Surplus on revaluation of property, 		
plant and equipment			
Unrealized gain on short term 		
investments - mutual funds

	 Deductible temporary differences

	 Provisions

	 The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset on tax loss amounting to Rs. 93.65 million and tax 
credit on account of minimum tax paid available for carry forward under section 113 of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 amounting to Rs. 5.94 million, pertaining to subsidiary, as enough taxable profits may 
not be available to set these off in the foreseeable future.

 98,693,544 

 117,369,059 

 7,765,417 

(1,325,852)

 222,502,168 

 Closing 

 -   

 (22,057,527)

 -   

-   

 (22,057,527)

Equity

 3,669,152 

 (19,655,478)

 7,765,417 

6,290,067 

 (1,930,842)

Profit or loss

2018
(Reversal from) / charge to

---------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------

 95,024,392 

 159,082,064 

 -   

(7,615,919)

 246,490,537 

Opening

	 Taxable temporary difference

	 Accelerated tax depreciation allowances	
Surplus on revaluation of property, 		
plant and equipment

	 Deductible temporary differences

	 Provisions
		

 95,024,392 

 159,082,064 

 (7,615,919)

 246,490,537 

 -   

 (3,139,856)

 -   

 (3,139,856)

2017
(Reversal from) / charge to

---------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------

 86,339,383 

 182,324,687 

 -   

 268,664,070 

 8,685,009 

 (20,102,767)

 (7,615,919)

 (19,033,677)

 Closing EquityProfit or lossOpening
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9		  Trade and other payables 

		  Trade creditors
		  Accrued liabilities
		  Advances from customers
		  Tax deducted at source
		  Provision for compensated absences 
		  Central Research Fund
		  Workers’ Welfare Fund
		  Advances from employees against purchase of vehicles
		  Due to related parties - unsecured
		  Other payables

		  9.1	 Central Research Fund

			   Balance as at 01 July 
			   Provision for the year

			   Payments made during the year
			   Balance as at 30 June 

		  9.2	 Due to related parties - unsecured

			   Name of related party:
			      Grupo Empresarial Bagó S.A
			      Bagó Laboratories Pte Ltd

10		  Short term borrowings

		  Short term running finance - secured

		  10.1	 Particulars of borrowings

			   Interest / markup based financing
			   Islamic mode of financing

2017
 Rupees 

 
 439,117,638 
 81,531,562 

 138,768,457 
 15,353 

 23,023,775 
 6,290,865 

 11,601,068 
 47,853,044 
 15,568,379 
 5,272,581 

 769,042,722 

 31,285,186 
 6,290,489 

 37,575,675 
 (31,284,809)

 6,290,866 

 2,565,499 
 13,002,880 
 15,568,379 

 24,888,862 

 24,888,862 
 -   

 24,888,862 

2018
 Rupees 

 590,013,029 
 82,960,712 

 185,015,657 
 319,200 

 25,540,225 
 2,283,549 
 7,090,508 

 48,120,016 
 10,869,542 
 7,965,942 

 960,178,380 

 6,290,866 
 2,717,079 
 9,007,945 

 (6,724,396)
 2,283,549 

 8,139,437 
 2,730,105 

 10,869,542 

 100,525,853 

 64,182,207 
 36,343,646 

 100,525,853 

Note

9.1
27

9.2

27

10.2
10.3

		  10.2	 Under Mark up arrangements

	 The Group has short term running finance facilities available from various commercial banks 
under mark up arrangements having aggregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 1,000 million (2017: 
Rs. 1,000 million). These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging from three months 
KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1.0% (2017: three months KIBOR plus 0.1% to 1.5%) per annum 
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on the outstanding balances. Running finance facilities amounting to Rs. 450 million can 
interchangeably be utilized as non-funded facilities. Out of the aggregate facilities, Rs. 700 
million (2017: Rs. 700 million) are secured by first pari passu charge of Rs. 1,621 million 
over all present and future assets (current and fixed assets) of the respective Companies 
in the Group (excluding land and building) and remaining Rs. 300 million (2017: Rs. 300 
million) facility is secured by lien on Holding Company’s short term investments (money 
market/income fund) which should be 110% of the maximum limit allowed for utilization. 
Under this arrangement, short term investment of Rs. 333.33 million (2017: Rs. 207.75 
million) in HBL funds as mentioned in note 20.1.1 is marked under lien. These facilities 
are renewable on annual basis latest by 31 December 2018.				  
	

10.3	 Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Holding Company has short term borrowing facility i.e. Running Musharakah 
available from Islamic bank under profit arrangements having sanctioned limit of Rs. 200 
million (2017: Rs. 200 million). This facility carries profit rate of three months KIBOR 
plus 0.3% (2016: three months KIBOR plus 0.3%) per annum on the outstanding balance. 
This facility can interchangeably be utilized as non-funded. This facility is secured by first 
pari passu charge over current assets of the  Holding Company. This facility is renewable 
on annual basis latest by 31 July 2018.								      
		

11		  Contingencies and commitments 

11.1	 Contingencies

	 The Holding Company filed a suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging 
SRO related to pharmaceutical pricing issued by Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan 
(“DRAP”) being ultra vires the constitution. The issue relates to fixation of prices of 
certain products of the Holding Company and the SRO issued in this regard whereby the 
products of the Holding Company were notified as controlled drugs. During the year, the 
matter was transferred to Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (“Supreme Court”). The 
Supreme Court on 06 August 2018 ordered to resolve the matter, in line with mechanisms 
and procedures incorporated in the Drug Pricing Policy, 2018 issued by DRAP, within 
ten weeks from the date of the order. Till the resolution of the matter, the pricing issued 
by DRAP will remain frozen. The management based on obtained legal opinion believes 
that the Holding Company has a strong case on merit and is likely to succeed in obtaining 
relief.										        

11.2	 Commitments

11.2.1	 Letter of credits

11.2.1.1	Under Mark up arrangements

	 Out of the aggregate facility of Rs. 850 million (2017: Rs. 850 million) for opening letters 
of credit, the amount utilized by the Group as at 30 June 2018 for capital expenditure 
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was Rs. 192.52 million (2017: Nil) and for other than capital expenditure was Rs. 151.99 
million (2017: Rs. 184.15 million). These facilities are secured by first pari passu charge 
of Rs. 1,621 million over all present and future assets (excluding land and building) of the 
respective Companies in the Group and lien over import documents.				  
						    

11.2.1.2	Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Holding Company has facility i.e. letters of credit of Rs. 75 million (2017: Rs. 75 
million) availed from Islamic bank. The amount utilized as at 30 June 2018 for capital 
expenditure was Rs. 1.64 million (2017: Rs. Nil) and for other than capital expenditure was 
Rs. 54.87 million (2017: Rs. 28.74 million). Lien is also marked over import documents.		
						    

11.2.2	 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group

11.2.2.1	Under Mark up arrangements

	 Out of the aggregate facility of Rs. 480 million (2017: Rs. 180 million) for letter of 
guarantees (which is the sublimit of running finance) of the respective Companies in the 
Group, the amount utilized by the Group as at 30 June 2018 was Rs. 71.06  million (2017: 
Rs. 18.52  million).									       

		
11.2.2.2	 Under Shariah compliant arrangements

	 The Holding Company has facility i.e. letter of guarantee of Rs. 25 million (2017: Rs. 25 
million) available from Islamic bank, the amount utilized as at 30 June 2018 was Rs. 1.96 
million (2017: Rs. 1.96 million).								     
	

12		  Property, plant and equipment 

		  Operating assets
		  Capital work in progress

2017
 Rupees 

 
 

2,862,770,364 
 219,480,016 

3,082,250,380 

2018
 Rupees 

 
2,970,028,177 
 105,136,237 

3,075,164,414 

Note

12.1
12.6
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12.1.1	 These include fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 82.17 million (2017: Rs. 72.2 million).

12.1.2	 Had there been no revaluation, carrying value of freehold land, building on free hold land and plant 
and machinery would have been as follows:							     
	

	 Freehold land
	 Building on freehold land
	 Plant and machinery

12.2	 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries are as follows:

12.3	 The latest revaluation was carried on at 30 June 2016. As per the revaluation report, forced sale 
value of freehold land, buildings on free hold land and plant and machinery was Rs. 618.08 million, 
Rs. 615.63 million and Rs. 685.51 million respectively. 							     
							     

12.4	 Depreciation is allocated as under:

	 Cost of sales
	 Administrative expenses
	 Selling and distribution expenses

12.5	 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

2017
 Rupees 

 
 86,123,262 

 454,247,553 
 858,552,851  

1,398,923,666 

 236,079,596 
 49,255,224 
 41,658,592 

 326,993,412 

 336,222 
 88,101 
 28,749 

 351 
 N/A 

 5,000 
 2,668 

 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 

Covered Area 
(square feet)

2018
 Rupees 

 129,623,262 
 504,298,273 
 916,717,349 

1,550,638,884 

 265,395,929 
 48,366,394 
 47,078,346 

 360,840,669 

 29.81 
 25.65 
 0.66 
 0.01 
 1.03 
 0.33 
 0.08 

 74,736 
 650,000 

 1,283,000 
 550,000 
 257,067 
 347,120 
 401,633 
 492,400 
 856,023 
 584,121 
 502,500 
 412,500 

 2,242,060 
 650,000 

 1,283,000 
 550,000 
 906,907 
 705,320 
 886,500 
 908,000 
 923,956 
 719,320 
 502,500 
 495,000 

 2,167,324 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 649,840 
 358,200 
 484,867 
 415,600 
 67,933 

 135,199 
 -   

 82,500 

 2,242,060 
 1,511,000 
 1,382,000 
 1,239,000 
 1,114,000 
 1,105,000 
 1,039,000 
 1,039,000 
 1,019,000 
 1,013,999 
 1,005,000 

 990,000 

------------------------------Rupees---------------------------

Ex Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee

 Mr. Farhan Rafique 	
 Mr. Khalil Ahmad 	
 Mr. Hassan Ali 	
 Mr. Munawar Hayat 	
 Mr. Muhammad Umer 	
 Mr. Sajid Kamal 	
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Waseem Mirza 	
 Mr. Muhammad Zia Ullah Khan 
 Mr. Waqar Ud Din Siddiqui 
 Mr. Iqbal Ud Din 	
 Mr. Asim Rafique 	

Vehicles
Toyota Corolla Altis
Suzuki Liana
Honda City
Suzuki Liana
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus

 Total area   
(acres)

Manufacturing Facility	
Head office & biotech plant		
Registered office			 
Vacant shop
Vacant plots
Guest house
Sale office

Usage of immovable property

Main G.T Road, Amanghar, District Nowshera, KPK
5-K.M - Sunder Raiwind Road, Raiwind Lahore 
197-A, The Mall, Rawalpindi Cantt, Rawalpindi
Shop no. 2, Ground Floor, Ramzan Medical Centre, Lahore
Phase II Extension Defence House Authority, Islamabad
House No. 167, Khanuspur Ayubia, KPK
Shahra-e-Faysal, Karachi

Location

24
25
26

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets
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 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Insurance Claim 
 Insurance Claim 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 

 558,450 
 394,200 
 129,667 
 36,356 

 300,905 
 517,750 
 237,960 
 240,958 
 26,050 

 325,333 
 247,478 
 333,500 
 354,797 
 355,732 
 333,500 
 436,911 
 368,007 
 284,000 
 284,000 
 283,500 
 283,500 
 450,000 
 425,000 
 280,000 
 427,000 
 400,000 
 220,410 
 220,410 
 233,637 
 350,000 
 172,929 
 225,000 
 30,000 
 12,095 
 11,895 
 3,880 
 5,080 

 15,115 
 15,620 
 17,190 
 26,071 
 5,875 
 4,875 

 20,096 
 9,690 

 12,106 
 12,981 
 15,281 
 14,281 
 14,281 
 14,281 
 2,370 

 19,261 
 17,055 
 13,660 
 12,321 
 26,655 
 25,020 
 31,313 
 14,750 
 20,586 
 15,550 
 18,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 
 23,975 

 558,450 
 394,200 
 778,000 
 700,000 
 521,348 
 517,750 
 237,960 
 468,625 
 401,700 
 553,000 
 452,379 
 333,500 
 354,797 
 355,732 
 333,500 
 436,911 
 368,007 
 284,000 
 284,000 
 283,500 
 283,500 
 450,000 
 425,000 
 280,000 
 427,000 
 400,000 
 220,410 
 220,410 
 233,637 
 350,000 
 172,929 
 225,000 
 30,000 
 31,900 
 31,700 
 36,500 
 37,700 
 37,250 
 41,250 
 33,500 
 45,876 
 35,000 
 34,000 
 32,911 
 26,000 
 31,911 
 32,786 
 40,911 
 39,911 
 39,911 
 39,911 
 28,000 
 30,911 
 32,200 
 32,300 
 36,786 
 37,140 
 39,000 
 48,788 
 32,000 
 29,786 
 29,250 
 29,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 
 34,250 

 -   
 -   

 648,333 
 663,644 
 220,443 

 -   
 -   

 227,667 
 375,650 
 227,667 
 204,901 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 19,805 
 19,805 
 32,620 
 32,620 
 22,135 
 25,630 
 16,310 
 19,805 
 29,125 
 29,125 
 12,815 
 16,310 
 19,805 
 19,805 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 25,630 
 11,650 
 15,145 
 18,640 
 24,465 
 10,485 
 13,980 
 17,475 
 17,250 
 9,200 

 13,700 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 
 10,275 

 985,500 
 930,000 
 778,000 
 751,295 
 734,814 
 710,000 
 705,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 683,000 
 663,813 
 637,000 
 612,000 
 612,000 
 605,000 
 605,000 
 568,500 
 568,500 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 567,000 
 560,000 
 549,000 
 530,000 
 529,000 
 529,000 
 529,000 
 408,866 
 390,000 
 380,250 
 73,700 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,900 
 69,000 
 69,000 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 

Employee
Employee
N/A
N/A
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee

 Mr. Sohail Mughal 	
 Mr. Sibtul Hasan Saqib 	
 EFU Insurance Company 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Yasir Islam  	
 Mr. Mukhtar Kiyani 	
 Mr. Raja Faheem Ahmad 
 Mr. Junaid Ikram 	
 Mr. Usman Aqeel 	
 Mr. Muhammad Nasir Zahoor 
 Mr. Shahid Ali Hanif 	
 Mr. Khursheed Norojo 	
 Mr. Muhammad Imitaiz Anwar 
 Mr. Sikandar Zaman 	
 Mr. Muhammad Ali  	
 Mr. Syed shehnaz Ul hasan 
 Mr. Syed Faisal Saleem 	
 Mr. Abdul Manan 	
 Mr. Waseem Akram 	
 Mr. Shakeel Ahmad 	
 Mr. Maqbool Ali 	
 Mr. Kamar Sohail Saeed Butt 
 Mr. Aleem Ahmad Khan 
 Mr. Asim Hussain 	
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Azhar Mehmood 	
 Mr. Muhammad Imran Abbasi 
 Mr. Imran Qayyum 	
 Mr. Mohsin Rasheed Bhatti 
 Mr. Farid Gul 	
 Mr. Muhammad Shahid Saleem 
 Mr. Furqan Khaliq 	
 Mr. Masood Ahmad 	
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Muhammad Akbar Shahzad 
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Syed Kashif Ur Rehman 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Adnan Ilyas Awan 	
 Mr. Ghani Badshah 	
 Mr. Sajid Zaman 	
 Mr. Muhammad Sohail 	
 Mr. Syed Qamar Ul Hasan 
 Mr. Waseem Umer 	
 Mr. Muhammad Ibrar 	
 Mr. Rizwan Saeed 	
 Mr. Javed Hamid 	
 Mr. Waseem Baig 	
 Mr. Raees Abbas 	

Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Alto
Suzuki Alto
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets

------------------------------Rupees---------------------------
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 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Insurance Claim 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Insurance Claim 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Company Policy 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
Company Policy
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 
 Tender 

 23,975 
 18,023 
 19,893 
 3,304 

 30,204 
 33,500 
 19,000 
 32,250 
 17,549 
 2,193 
 3,104 

 11,600 
 3,480 

 23,283 
 16,362 
 31,450 
 17,000 
 54,000 
 35,000 
 54,000 
 30,000 
 19,985 
 11,528 
 9,724 

 10,724 
 8,724 
 9,092 
 8,378 
 9,092 
 9,237 
 9,237 

 31,660 
 6,000 

 18,250 
 16,000 
 13,000 
 23,740 
 15,786 
 17,700 
 11,000 

 690,536 
 681,967 
 681,967 
 421,140 
 356,651 
 552,605 
 492,500 
 458,000 
 432,724 
 333,500 
 333,500 
 333,500 
 276,308 
 331,000 
 466,956 
 409,000 

 9,353 
 13,883 
 22,001 
 18,500 

 581,308 
 499,300 
 24,576 
 14,460 
 3,295 

 25,898,706 

 34,250 
 23,730 
 25,600 
 63,500 
 30,204 
 33,500 
 19,000 
 32,250 
 62,000 
 35,000 
 35,911 
 37,000 
 28,880 
 63,500 
 16,362 
 31,450 
 17,000 
 54,000 
 35,000 
 54,000 
 30,000 
 19,985 
 24,700 
 21,250 
 22,250 
 20,250 
 16,500 
 15,786 
 16,500 
 15,000 
 15,000 
 31,660 
 6,000 

 18,250 
 16,000 
 13,000 
 23,740 
 15,786 
 17,700 
 11,000 

 690,536 
 795,667 
 795,667 
 421,140 
 645,367 
 586,572 
 492,500 
 458,000 
 432,724 
 333,500 
 333,500 
 333,500 
 276,308 
 331,000 
 466,956 
 409,000 
 46,028 
 45,300 
 39,476 
 18,500 

 901,000 
 509,500 
 28,000 
 33,100 
 38,698 

 34,863,180 

 10,275 
 5,707 
 5,707 

 60,196 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 44,451 
 32,807 
 32,807 
 25,400 
 25,400 
 40,217 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 13,172 
 11,526 
 11,526 
 11,526 
 7,408 
 7,408 
 7,408 
 5,763 
 5,763 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 113,700 
 113,700 

 -   
 288,716 
 33,967 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 36,675 
 31,417 
 17,475 

 -   
 319,692 
 10,200 
 3,424 

 18,640 
 35,403 

 8,964,474 

 68,500 
 68,500 
 68,500 
 66,885 
 65,900 
 65,900 
 65,900 
 64,500 
 63,501 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 63,500 
 62,900 
 62,900 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 56,240 
 54,000 
 50,490 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 49,400 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 
 47,500 

 1,726,340 
 1,705,500 
 1,705,500 
 1,052,850 
 1,019,000 
 1,019,000 

 985,500 
 916,000 
 911,000 
 690,820 
 690,820 
 690,820 
 690,770 
 685,770 
 670,500 
 605,000 
 73,348 
 72,499 
 69,900 
 47,500 

 1,128,327 
 612,000 
 68,500 
 69,900 
 66,386 

 57,227,183 

Employee
Auction
Auction
N/A
Employee
Employee
Auction
Employee
N/A
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Ex Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Employee
Employee
Auction
Ex Employee
Employee
Ex Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Ex-Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Employee
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction

 Mr. Usman Akram 	
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Imran Ali 	
 Mr. Ali Haider 	
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Adeel Ahmed 	
 EFU Insurance Company 
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 	
 Mr. Khuram Shahzad 	
 Mr. Muhammad Usman Baig 
 Mr. Muzafar Hussain 	
 Mr. Qaisar Khan 	
 Mr. Ghulam Mustafa 	
 Mr. Sohail Ahmad Shaik 
 Mr. Muhammad Rafique 
 Mr. Mumtaz Ahmad 	
 Mr. Mansoor Ahmad Paracha 
 Mr. Muhammad Afaque Khan 
 Mr. Babar Baig 	
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Muhammad Babar 	
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Muhammad Babar 	
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Liaqat Hussain 	
 Mr. Jahanzaib 	
 Mr. Raheel Zaman 	
 Mr. Zalmi Khan 	
 Mr. Noor Muhammad Gul 
 Mr. Shahbaz Mashi 	
 Mr. Syed Shahzad UL Hasan 
 Mr. Hassan Ali 	
 Mr. Asad Ali Shah 	
 Mr. Farhan Rafiq 	
 Mr. Tahir Iqbal 	
 Mr. Shams ul Arfeen 	
 Mr. Imran Shahzad 	
 Mr. M. Waqas 	
 Mr. Saeed Ahmed 	
 Mr. Muhammad Yasir 	
 Mr. Syed Mahmood  	
 Mr. Muhammad Asad  	
 Mr. Muhammad Sultan 	
 Mr. Tabassum Ali 	
 Mr. Ubaid Ul Islam 	
 Mr. Imran Latif 	
 Mr. Muhammad Irfan 	
 Mr. Usman Saleem 	
 Mr Ahsan Amin 	
 Mr. M. Hammad 	
 Mr. Noor Ullah Jan 	
 Mr. M. Umar Abbas 	
 Mr. Arshad  	
 Mr. Waseem Mirza 	
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	
 Mr. Raj Muhammad  	
 Mr. Hassan Ali 	
 Mr. Akbar Shahzad 	

Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
YD 70 Dhoom
Toyota Corolla
Toyota Corolla
Toyota Corolla
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Mehran
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Motor Cycle 70 CC
Motor Cycle 70 CC

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets

------------------------------Rupees---------------------------
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48,376 
 52,722 

 101,098 

 739,000 

 876,172 

 168,200 

 244,089 

 59,355,742 

 41,910,124 

Ex Employee
Ex Employee

 Not 
Applicable 
 Not 
Applicable 
 Not 
Applicable 
 Not 
Applicable 

 Dr. Muhammad Asif Ijaz 
 Miss Nayyar Meraj 	

 Mr. Sabir Hussain Butt 	

 Not Applicable 	

 Not Applicable 	

 Not Applicable 	

Computers

Laptop
Laptop

Assets written off:

Vehicles

Computers

Office equipment

Plant & machinery

2018 Rupees

2017 Rupees

Mode of 
disposal

Gain / (loss) 
on disposal

Sale 
proceeds

Net book 
value

Cost / 
revalued 
amount

Relationship 
with 

Company
Particulars of purchaserParticulars of 

assets

12.6	 Capital work-in-progress

	 The movement in capital work in progress 
	 is as follows:

	 Balance as at 01 July
	 Additions
	 Transfers

	 Balance as at 30 June

12.6.1	 Capital work-in-progress comprises of:

	 Building and civil works
	 Plant and machinery
	 Advances to suppliers

12.6.1.1		 These represents plant and machinery and equipment in the course of development and 		
		  installation.											         
	
12.6.1.2		 These are interest free in the normal course of business for machinery, equipment and 		
		  vehicles.											         
									       

2017
 Rupees 

 

 354,217,767 
 335,713,656 

 (470,451,407)

 219,480,016 

 65,625,631 
 137,816,372 
 16,038,013 

 219,480,016 

2018
 Rupees 

 219,480,016 
 267,331,090 

 (381,674,869)

 105,136,237 

 3,192,752 
 63,068,421 
 38,875,064 

 105,136,237 

Note

12.6.1

12.6.1.1
12.6.1.2

1,933 
 5,000 
 6,933 

 -   

 -   

 (19,619)

 (215,613)

 25,670,407 

 15,984,759 

Company Policy 
Company Policy 

Long Service 
Award 
Written - off 

Written - off 

Written - off 

10,000 
 5,000 

 15,000 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 34,878,180 

 23,114,745 

8,067 
 -   

 8,067 

 -   

 -   

 19,619 

 215,613 

 9,207,773 

 7,129,986 

------------------------------Rupees---------------------------
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13	 Investment property

	 Opening balance
	 Additions during the year
	 Less: accumulated depreciation
	 Closing balance

	 13.1	 It represents following pieces of land:								      
				  
		  -	 Plot number 69 measuring 177.77 square yards situated at Civic Centre, Gulberg 		
			   Greens, Islamabad.									       
		
		  -	 Plot number 70 measuring 200 square yards situated at Civic Centre, Gulberg 		
			   Greens, Islamabad.									       
		
		  These plots were purchased on 02 May 2018 and their carrying value approximates fair 		
		  value.

14	 Intangibles

	 14.1	 Computer softwares and software license fees
		
		  Cost

		  Balance as at 01 July 
		  Addition during the year
		  Balance as at 30 June 

		  Amortisation

		  Balance as at 01 July 
		  Amortisation for the year
		  Balance as at 30 June 

		  Net book value

	 14.1.1	 These include fully amortized assets amounting to Rs. 8.12 million (2017: Rs. 6.84 million). 
		  Intangibles are amortised at 33% (2017: 33%) on straight line basis.				  
								      

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 13,964,128 
 -   

 13,964,128 

 8,424,732 
 2,366,898 

 10,791,630 

 3,172,498 

-
 78,545,641 

 -   
 78,545,641 

 13,964,128 
 1,740,976 

 15,705,104 

 10,791,630 
 2,555,842 

 13,347,472 

 2,357,632 

13.1

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

14.1.1

25
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17	 Trade debts - considered good

	 Exports - secured, considered good

	 Unsecured - Considered good
	     - Exports
	     - Others

	 17.1	 Detail of trade debts on account of export sales:
		

		  Country

		  Sri Lanka
		  Myanmar
		  Sudan
		  Uzbekistan
		  Kenya
		  Afghanistan
		  Nigeria

15	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 

Stores
Spare parts
Loose tools
Stores in transit

16	 Stock in trade 

Raw and packing materials
Work in process
Finished goods
Stock in transit

2017
 Rupees 

 

21,496,812 
 15,924,274 
 8,185,435 
 1,802,617 

 47,409,138 

481,959,789 
 78,514,365 

1,149,308,318 
 55,120,050 

1,764,902,522 

2018
 Rupees 

16,997,016 
 27,359,521 
 8,642,862 

 18,802,817 
 71,802,216 

392,398,201 
 71,287,001 

 773,414,598 
 109,896,463 

1,346,996,263 

Note

16.1
16.2

 

17.1

17.1

16.1	 The amount charged to profit and loss account on account of write down of finished goods 
to net realizable value amounts to Rs. 232.75 million (2017: Rs. 173.03 million).		
	

16.2	 It includes raw and packing material in transit amounting to Rs. 29.72 million (2017: Rs. 
1.65 million) and finished goods in transit amounting to Rs. 80.18 million (2017: 53.48 
million).											         

 

 
 28,638,649 

 54,020,535 
 347,114,399 
 401,134,934 
 429,773,583 

2017
 Rupees 

 839,200 
 15,478,289 
 33,606,806 

 -   
 4,096,240 

 -   
 -   

 54,020,535 

 

 7,909,650 

 73,875,402 
 522,682,630 
 596,558,032 
 604,467,682 

2018
 Rupees 

 44,400,649 
 -   

 27,311,615 
 1,298,203 

 -   
 864,935 

 -   

 73,875,402 

Contracts
2017

 Rupees 

 28,638,649 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 28,638,649 

2018
 Rupees 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 6,269,400 
 -   

 1,640,250 

 7,909,650 

Confirmed LCs

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote
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18.1	 Advances given to staff are in accordance with the Group’s policy and terms of employment 
contract. These advances are secured against provident fund. Advances to staff include 
amount due from executives of the Holding Company of Rs. 2.13 million (2017: Rs. 8.03 
million).											         
			 

18.2	 These are interest free in the ordinary course of business.

19	 Deposits and prepayments 

	 Deposits - considered good
	 Earnest Money 
	 Security Margins 

	 Prepayments

	 19.1	 These are interest free and given in ordinary course of business.

18	 Loans and advances - considered good

	 Advances to employees - secured
	 Advances to suppliers - unsecured
	 Others

2017
 Rupees 

 16,080,948 
 59,458,496 
 1,612,974 

 77,152,418 

 168,330,957 
 980,102 

 169,311,059 
 780,986 

 170,092,045 

2018
 Rupees

 21,492,726 
 26,319,171 

 413,959 
 48,225,856 

 181,561,652 
 9,166,102 

 190,727,754 
 701,187 

 191,428,941 

20	 Other receivables 

	 Sales tax refundable - net
	 Worker’s profit participation fund
	 Export rebate
	 Others

	 20.1	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

		  Balance receivable / (payable) as at 01 July
		  Interest on funds utilized 
		  Provision for the year

		  Payments made during the year
		  Balance as at 30 June

	 The fund balance has been utilized by the subsidiary company, BF Biosciences Limited, 
for its own business and interest at the rate of 9.68% per annum (2017: 10.02% per annum) 

 8,656,926 
 90,186 

 -   
 256,700 

 9,003,812 

 (31,660,709)
 (2,550,713)

 (31,137,923)
 (65,349,345)

 65,439,531 
 90,186 

 8,629,024 
 8,888,310 
 5,252,893 

 69,534,001 
 92,304,228 

 90,186 
 (29,798)

 (11,281,892)
 (11,221,504)

 20,109,814 
 8,888,310 

Note

18.1
18.2

19.1

20.1

20.2

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote
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has been credited to the fund. Interest was calculated at higher of 75% of dividend rate or 
2.5% plus bank rate, as was required under Companies Profits (Workers’ Participation) Act, 
1968.												          
		

20.2	 This includes Rs. 60.86 million (2017: Nil) receivable on account of commission in the 
capacity of acting as an agent.

21	 Short term investments 

	 Investments at fair value through profit 
	     or loss - Mutual Funds

	 Held for trading

	 21.1	 These investments are ‘held for trading’

		  Carrying value at 01 July
		  Acquisition during the year
		  Redemption during the year
		  Realized gain on sale of investments during the year
		  Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investment 	

	 during the year

		  Carrying and fair value of short term 
		  investments 

	 21.1.1	 Mutual fund wise detail is 	
	 as follows:

	 HBL Money Market Fund
	 MCB Cash Management Optimizer 	

Fund
	 HBL Cash Fund
	 NAFA Money Market Fund
	 ABL Government Securities Fund
	 MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund
	 Faysal Savings Growth Fund
	 Faysal MTS Fund
	 Faysal Money Market Fund

21.2	 Realized gain of Rs. 6.16 million (2017: Rs. 19.98 million) on sale of mutual funds and 
bonus dividend of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 16.17 million) has been recorded in “other income”. 
These investments and related gain is from non shariah compliant arrangement. These are 
marked under lien as mentioned in note 10.						    
	

2017
 Rupees 

 

  855,943,421 

 332,166,585 
1,072,379,518 
 (573,633,378)

 19,983,118 
 5,047,578 

 855,943,421 

 207,874,880 
 405,466,136 

 155,121,600 
 -   

 33,772,097 
 21,172,676 

 757,430 
 15,616,439 
 16,162,163 

 855,943,421 

2017

2018
 Rupees 

   941,746,224 

 855,943,421 
 317,010,000 

 (268,427,399)
 6,158,532 

 31,061,670 

 941,746,224 

 218,868,503 
 391,315,609 

 164,301,807 
 110,720,285 
 35,481,940 
 19,584,236 

 794,481 
 679,363 

 -   
 941,746,224 

2018

 2,042,627 
 4,033,778 

 1,543,804 
 -   

 3,371,142 
 206,559 

 7,425 
 155,713 
 159,626 

2017

 2,042,626 
 3,693,953 

 1,550,552 
 10,641,065 
 3,371,142 

 206,559 
 7,425 
 6,414 

-

2018
Units

........…….Number……........ ........…….Rupees……........

 Fair value

Note

21.1

21.1.1
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22	 Cash and bank balances 
	

	 Cash in hand
	 Cash at bank:    
	    Current accounts
	       - foreign currency
	       - local currency

	
	 Call deposit receipt

	 Deposit accounts - local currency

2017
 Rupees

 10,309,874 

 13,186,391 
 93,391,348 

 106,577,739 

 -   

 127,479,149 
 244,366,762 

2018
 Rupees

 10,678,976 

 9,784,545 
 234,501,933 
 244,286,478 

 27,958,000 

 7,943,985 
 290,867,439 

Note

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.1	 These include bank accounts of Rs. 0.67 million (2017: Rs. 0.67  million) maintained under 
Shariah compliant arrangements.								      
	

22.2	 It represents call deposit receipts with Bank Alfalah Limited.					   
											         

22.3	 These include deposit accounts of Rs. 7.94 million (2017: Rs. 126.06 million) under mark 
up arrangements, which carry interest rates ranging from 3.5% - 4.57% (2017: 3.75% - 
6.00%) per annum.										        
						    

	 These also include deposit account of Rs. 0.001 million (2017: Rs. 1.42 million) under 
Shariah compliant arrangements, which carries profit rate of 2.40% (2017: 2.40% - 2.41%) 
per annum.

23.1	 This includes sale of both own manufactured and purchased products.

23	 Sales - net 
	
	  Gross sales: 
	     Local 
	     Export 

	 Less: 
	     Sales returns 
	     Discounts and commission 
	     Sales tax 

 5,251,325,294 
 220,655,474 

 5,471,980,768 

 (138,558,186)
 (313,514,151)
 (17,478,749)

 (469,551,086)
 5,002,429,682 

 5,324,231,713 
 155,329,621 

 5,479,561,334 

 (78,243,918)
 (314,001,291)
 (30,197,296)

 (422,442,505)
 5,057,118,829 

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees
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24.2	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 10.75 million (2017: Rs. 9.68 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.

24	 Cost of sales 

	 Raw and packing materials consumed        
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits
	 Fuel and power
	 Repair and maintenance
	 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
	 Packing charges
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Printing and stationery
	 Postage and telephone
	 Insurance
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Canteen expenses
	 Security expenses
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Laboratory and other expenses

	 Work in process:
	    Opening
	    Closing

	 Cost of goods manufactured

	 Finished stock:
	 Opening 
	 Purchases made during the year
	 Closing

	
	
24.1	 Raw and packing materials consumed        
	
	 Opening
	 Purchases made during the year

	 Closing

2017
 Rupees 

 
 805,691,075 
 269,404,865 
 55,037,193 
 16,954,724 
 39,819,113 
 11,643,474 

 622,259 
 2,186,523 
 4,248,297 

 13,871,323 
 11,948,679 
 13,604,599 

 871,689 
 236,079,596 
 35,025,333 

 1,517,008,742 

 96,389,128 
 (76,419,116)

 19,970,012 
 1,536,978,754 

 1,597,678,787 
 1,116,990,476 

 (1,160,681,402)
 1,553,987,861 
 3,090,966,615 

 357,353,488 
 921,019,542 

 1,278,373,030 
 (472,681,955)

 805,691,075 

2018
 Rupees 

 973,850,210 
 302,593,586 
 54,860,271 
 17,464,729 
 48,909,587 
 15,284,308 

 137,012 
 2,330,816 
 4,529,812 

 13,573,695 
 11,895,361 
 16,257,346 

 24,097 
 265,395,929 
 22,549,041 

 1,749,655,800 

 76,419,116 
 (71,287,001)

 5,132,115 
 1,754,787,915 

 1,160,681,402 
 1,319,291,305 
 (773,414,598)
 1,706,558,109 
 3,461,346,024 

 472,681,955 
 893,566,456 

 1,366,248,411 
 (392,398,201)

 973,850,210 

Note

24.1
24.2

12.4
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25.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 9.09 million (2017: Rs. 7.89 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.

25.3	 Donations include the payment to following institution in which the director is interested:	
	

25	 Administrative expenses 

	 Salaries and other benefits
	 Directors fees and expenses
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Postage and telephone
	 Printing, stationery and office supplies
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Transportation
	 Legal and professional charges
	 Fuel and power
	 Auditors’ remuneration
	 Repair and maintenance
	 Fee and subscriptions
	 Donations
	 Insurance
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Amortisation of intangibles
	 Canteen expenses
	 Training expenses
	 Other expenses

	 25.2	 Auditors’ remuneration

		  Fee for annual audit
		  Audit of consolidated financial statements
		  Review of half yearly financial statements
		  Annual audit - BF Biosciences Limited
		  Annual audit - Farmacia
		  Special certificates and others
		  Out-of-pocket expenses

2017
 Rupees 

 
 188,469,388 

 1,246,516 
 1,683,279 
 9,353,881 
 4,318,092 

 10,317,189 
 8,751,588 

 10,267,032 
 4,879,864 
 1,680,486 

 12,098,932 
 6,236,682 

 10,280,583 
 5,788,907 

 49,255,224 
 2,366,898 
 6,828,413 

 41,000 
 1,730,753 

 335,594,707 

 
 747,500 
 74,750 

 112,125 
 224,250 
 62,368 

 264,250 
 195,243 

 1,680,486 

2018
 Rupees 

 202,849,515 
 1,428,736 

 995,562 
 7,410,295 
 4,815,103 

 14,656,333 
 8,769,539 
 6,598,164 
 5,448,846 
 1,772,969 

 13,363,691 
 4,072,025 
 8,012,070 
 5,479,107 

 48,366,394 
 2,555,842 
 7,766,628 

 205,794 
 2,178,431 

 346,745,044 

 

 784,900 
 78,500 

 117,750 
 224,250 
 62,800 

 269,875 
 234,894 

 1,772,969 

Note

25.1

25.2 

25.3 & 25.4

12.4

2017
 Rupees

 2,000,000 

2018
 Rupees 

 3,000,000 

Name of donee

National 
Management 
Foundation 
(LUMS)

Nature of interest 
in donee

Trustee

Name of 
director

Mr. Osman 
Khalid Waheed 
(Director)

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees
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26	 Selling and distribution expenses

	 Salaries and other benefits
	 Travelling and conveyance
	 Trade debts written off
	 Earnest money written off
	 Fuel and power
	 Rent, rates and taxes
	 Sales promotion and advertisement
	 Freight and forwarding
	 Printing and stationary
	 Postage and telephone
	 Royalty, Fee and subscription
	 Insurance
	 Repairs and maintenance
	 Conferences, seminars and training 
	 Medical research and patient care
	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
	 Other expenses
	 Service charges on sales

	 25.4	 Donations to following organizations exceeds 
		  Rs. 0.5 million:

		  - Cancer Care Hospital and Research Center 		
	    Foundation

		  - Cultoor (Private) Limited
		  - Liver Foundation Trust
		  - Pakistan Center for Philanthropy
		  - The Citizens Foundation
		  - Gujranwala Liver foundation, The Health 		

	    Foundation
		  - University of Kelaniya
		  - Ali Institute of Education
		  - Lahore Literary Festival (Society)
		  - NIBD Welfare Society
		  - Okara Patient Welfare Association

2017
 Rupees 

 

 -   

 -   
 600,000 

 -   
 -   

 1,287,000 

 875,852 
 1,020,000 
 1,000,000 
 1,100,000 
 1,411,200 

2018
 Rupees 

 1,000,000 

 543,478 
 600,000 

 1,000,000 
 665,000 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Note

26.1

12.4

2017
 Rupees 

 
 397,483,267 
 184,679,367 
 15,356,017 

 -   
 5,292,778 
 5,936,687 

 113,449,316 
 22,065,043 
 6,443,403 

 17,102,596 
 17,138,012 
 21,625,620 
 7,084,594 

 115,916,971 
 16,509,032 
 41,658,592 
 1,898,558 

 33,577,092 
 1,023,216,945 

2018
 Rupees 

 498,675,460 
 188,650,269 

 -   
 7,430,890 
 5,759,696 
 6,781,739 

 146,348,510 
 22,404,318 
 5,030,193 

 16,346,672 
 20,976,048 
 22,695,857 
 14,121,470 

 137,656,824 
 41,337,522 
 47,078,346 
 2,192,094 

 54,438,826 
 1,237,924,734 

26.1	 Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 16.08 million (2017: Rs. 14.52 million), which 
represents employer’s contribution towards provident fund.
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28.1.1	 These include profit of Rs. 0.02 million (2017: Rs. 0.05 million) earned on deposit account 
maintained under Shariah compliant arrangements.

	 28.1	 From financial assets

		  Profit on deposits with banks
		  Dividend income
		  Unrealized gain on re-measurement of short
		     term investments to fair value
		  Profit on term deposits
		  Realized gain on sale of short term 		

	    investments

	 28.2	 From non financial assets

 
		  Gain on sale of property, plant and
		     equipment - net of write off
		  Export rebate
		  Commission income
		  Workers’ Welfare Fund (prior years’) 	

	    no longer payable written back

 4,831,866 
 16,169,325 

 5,047,578 
 834,747 

 19,983,118 
 46,866,634 

 4,061,433 
 -   

 31,061,670 
 -   

 6,158,532 
 41,281,635 

 15,984,759 
 -   

 696,052 

 43,352,950 
 60,033,761 

 25,670,407 
 7,029,886 

 65,603,927 

 -   
 98,304,220 

28.1.1

21.1

21.1

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 RupeesNote

12.5

20.2

27.1	 Loss incurred during the year was due to actual currency fluctuation.

28	 Other income 

	 From financial assets
	 From non financial assets

27	 Other expenses

	 Exchange loss
	 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund
	 Workers’ Welfare Fund 
	 Central Research Fund

 46,866,634 
 60,033,761 

 106,900,395 

 41,281,635 
 98,304,220 

 139,585,855 

 1,644,714 
 31,137,923 
 11,601,068 
 6,290,489 

 50,674,194 

 32,025,371 
 11,281,892 
 7,090,508 
 2,717,079 

 53,114,850 

28.1
28.2

27.1
20.1

9
9.1
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   215,606,188 
 -   

 (19,033,677)
 196,572,511 

 591,176,426 

31%

 183,264,692 
 53,687,252 

 (37,151,095)
 (9,725,467)
 19,936,544 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 (13,439,415)
 13,307,819 

 196,572,511 

  110,847,344 
 (6,332,538)

 (1,930,842)
 102,583,964 

 85,572,328 

30%

 25,671,698 
 67,306,589 

 (23,283,684)
 37,963,935 

 -   
 (4,683,787)

 5,941,751 
 (6,332,538)

 -   
 76,912,266 

 102,583,964 

29.1	 This includes markup paid under Shariah compliant arrangements amounting to Rs. 1.59 
million (2017: Rs. 0.16 million) against facilities of short term borrowings.			 

29	 Finance cost

	 Mark-up on bank financing
	 Bank charges
	 Interest on Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

 4,386,844 
 10,763,633 
 2,550,713 

 17,701,190 

 6,235,857 
 5,736,049 

 29,798 
 12,001,704 

2017
 Rupees 

2017
 Rupees 

2017
 Rupees 

2017
 Rupees 

2017
 Rupees 

2018
 Rupees

2018
 Rupees

2018
 Rupees

2018
 Rupees

2018
 Rupees

NoteNote

29.1

20.1

 - - - - - (Percentage) - - - - -

30	 Taxation 

	 Current
	    -   For the year
	    -   For prior years

	 Deferred
	    -   For the year

	 30.1	 Tax charge reconciliation 

		  Numerical reconciliation between tax 		
	 expense and accounting profit:

		  Profit before taxation

		  Applicable tax rate as per Income Tax 		
	 Ordinance, 2001

		  Tax on accounting profit
		  Effect of final tax regime
		  Effect of tax credit
		  Not adjustable for tax purposes
		  Effect of super tax
		  Effect of proration and tax rate adjustment
		  Effect of minimum tax
		  Prior year tax adjustment
		  Effect of prior years’ reversal of Workers’ 	

	 Welfare Fund
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30.2	 The Group’s current tax provision represents tax under the normal tax regime at the rate of 
30% of taxable income (2017: 31%), minimum tax paid on turnover and final taxes paid 
under final tax regime as adjusted by tax credits available under Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001.

30.3	 As per management’s assessment, the provision for tax made in the financial statements is 
sufficient. A comparison of last three years’ of income tax provisions with tax assessment  
is presented below:

30.4	 As explained in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors 
in their meeting held on 25 September 2018 has recommended sufficient cash dividend 
for the year ended 30 June 2018 which complies with the requirements of sections 5A of 
the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax on non-distribution of 
dividend has been recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

	 Tax Years
	 2015
	 2016
	 2017

 Tax as per 
assessment / 

return 
 Rupees 

  442,377,441 
 558,107,117 
 235,100,609 

 Tax provision 
as per financial 

statements 
Rupees 

 438,221,875 
 609,539,730 
 215,606,188 

31.1	 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share as the Group has no commitment 
for potentially issuable shares.

31	 Earnings per share - basic and diluted 

	 Profit for the year after taxation attributable
	    to equity holders of the Holding Company
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
	 Earnings per share

	 Managerial remuneration
	 Utilities
	 LFA
	 Bonus
	 Contribution to provident fund

	 Numbers

32	 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Executive Director and Executives

2017
 

395,765,198
30,186,841

 13.11 

 183,934,453 
 -   

 9,354,279 
 24,311,866 
 9,608,991 

 227,209,589 

41

 Executives 

2018
 

 7,076,033 
30,186,841
 0.23 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

Executive
Director

---------------------Rupees---------------------

2018

 29,270,805 
 482,097 

 2,398,495 
 4,441,658 
 1,898,775 

 38,491,830 

2

 Chief 
Executive 

Rupees
Numbers

Rupees
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	 In addition, the Chief  Executive, one working director and certain executives of the Holding 
Company and Chief Executive of Subsidiary Company are allowed free use of the Company 
vehicles. The directors and managing partner of the subsidiary companies are not paid any 
remuneration.		

	 The Holding Company has 6 (2017: 6) non executive directors. Non executive directors are not 
paid any remuneration or benefits other than the meeting fee and reimbursement of expenses. All 
the members of the Board of Directors were paid Rs. 426,908 (2017: Rs. 330,000) as meeting fee 
and Rs. 1,001,828 (2017: Rs. 916,516 ) as reimbursement of expenses for attending the Board of 
Directors’ meetings.

	 Managerial remuneration
	 Utilities
	 LFA
	 Bonus
	 Contribution to provident fund

	 Numbers

 253,985,635 
 -   

 14,851,875 
 36,845,138 
 12,929,124 

 318,611,772 

119 

 Executives 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

Executive
Director

---------------------Rupees---------------------

2017

 27,081,944 
 465,598 

 2,220,829.00 
 6,662,487 
 1,775,016 

 38,205,874 

2

 Chief 
Executive 

33	 Related party transactions

	 The Group’s related parties include entities over which directors are able to exercise influence, staff 
retirement fund, directors and key management personnel. Balances with the related parties are 
shown else where in the consolidated financial statements. The transactions with related parties are 
as follows:

	 Contribution towards employees’ provident fund
	 Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of 
	    key management personnel - note 32
	 Dividend to KFW Factors (Private) Limited - associated
	    company (27% equity held)
	 Dividend to Directors

2017
 Rupees 

 32,079,540 

 165,890,469 

 124,304,130 
 44,193,540 

2018
 Rupees 

 35,929,876 

 155,424,408 

 33,147,768 
 11,141,136 
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34	 Plant capacity and production

	 The  production capacity of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies’ plants cannot be 
determined, as it is a multi-product production facility with varying manufacturing processes.		
												          

35	 Number of employees

36	 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

	 Total number of employees 
	    as at 30 June
	 Average number of employees 
	    during the year

Balance as at 01 July 2017

Changes from financing cash flows

Finance cost paid
Dividends paid
Total changes from financing 
   cash flows

Non-cash changes

Dividend approved
Interest / markup expense
Total non-cash changes

Closing as at 30 June 2018

1038

1029

 82,501,598 

 (13,108,931)
 (119,458,387)

 (132,567,318)

 120,747,364 
 12,001,704 

 132,749,068 

 82,683,348 

Total

1117

1078

2018
Liabilities

 1,646,851 

 (13,108,931)
 -   

 (13,108,931)

 -   
 12,001,704 
 12,001,704 

 539,624 

Accrued 
finance cost

2017 2017
Factory employees Total employees

255

253

 80,854,747 

 -   
 (119,458,387)

 (119,458,387)

 120,747,364 
 -   

 120,747,364 

 82,143,724 

Unclaimed 
dividend

272

263

2018 2018

---------------------Rupees---------------------
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38	 Financial risk management 

	 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:			 
												          

	 - Credit risk
	 - Liquidity risk
	 - Market risk

	 This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management 
of capital.												          
							     

	 Risk management framework

	 The Group’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the 
Group’s risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Group’s risk management policies. 

	
	 The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced 

by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. All derivative activities for risk management 
purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and 
supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be 
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

	 The Group’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Group. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by 
internal audit department. Internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of 
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

	 38.1	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if 
counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Group’s credit risk arises 
from long term deposits, trade debts, other receivables, loans and advances, short term 
deposits, short term investments and balances with banks. The Group has no significant 
concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of counter 
parties.											         
							     

	 38.1.1	 Exposure to credit risk

		  The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
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maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

	 Long term deposits 
	 Trade debts - considered good
	 Loans and advances - considered good
	 Short term deposits
	 Other receivables
	 Short term investments
	 Bank balances

	 38.1.2	 Credit quality of financial assets

		  Bank balances & short term investments

		 The credit quality of Company’s bank balances and short term investments can be assessed 
with reference to external credit rating agencies as follows:

2017
 Rupees 

 11,053,325 
 429,773,583 

 1,612,974 
 169,311,059 

 256,700 
 855,943,421 
 234,056,888 

 1,702,007,950 

2018
 Rupees 

 11,613,325 
 604,467,682 

 413,959 
 190,727,754 
 69,534,001 

 941,746,224 
 252,230,463 

 2,070,733,408 

JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS

JCR-VIS
PACRA
JCR-VIS
PACRA
JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS

 140,066,227 
 47,343,460 
 26,887,738 
 3,238,605 

 673,754 
 1,891,702 

 32,119,425 
 9,552 

 252,230,463 

 218,868,503 
 391,315,609 
 164,301,807 
 110,720,285 
 35,481,940 
 19,584,236 

 794,481 
 679,363 

 -   
 941,746,224 

1,193,976,687 

 54,199,417 
 33,591,323 
 30,678,962 
 89,548,991 
 4,459,190 
 5,610,747 

 15,958,558 
 9,698 

 234,056,886 

 207,874,880 
 405,466,136 
 155,121,600 

 -   
 33,772,097 
 21,172,676 

 757,430 
 15,616,439 
 16,162,163 

 855,943,421 

1,090,000,307 

A-1+
 A1+ 
A1+
A-1+
A-1+
A1+
A1+
A-1+

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

AAA
AA+
AA+
AA+
AA+
AAA
AAA
AA

 AA(f) 
AA+(f)
 AA(f) 
AA(f)
 A(f) 
4 Star
AA-(f)
A+(f)
 AA(f) 

Bank balances

Habib Bank Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Short term investments

HBL Money Market Fund
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund
HBL Cash Fund
NAFA Money Market Fund
ABL Government Securities Fund
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund
Faysal Savings Growth Fund
Faysal MTS Fund
Faysal Money Market Fund

Short term Long term
Rating 2018 2017Rating Agency

-------------------Rupees-----------------------
Institutions
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2018
 Rupees

 179,819,469 
 216,620,328 
 128,566,273 
 79,461,612 

 604,467,682 

 156,710,926 
 175,863,972 
 56,642,976 
 40,555,709 

 429,773,583 

Trade debts

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was:

Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 120 days
Past due 121 - 365 days
More than 365 days

	 Trade debts are essentially due from government departments / projects and the Group is actively 
pursuing for recovery of debts and the Group does not expect these companies to fail to meet their 
obligations. 												          
	

	 Deposits and other receivables are mostly due from Government Institutions. Based on past 
experience the management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these 
financial assets. There are reasonable grounds to believe that these amounts will be recovered in 
short course of time.											         
							     

	 38.1.3	 Concentration of credit risk

	 Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly 
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to 
the Group’s total credit exposure. The Group’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly 
diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties 
there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.					   

2017
 Rupees 
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38.3.2	 The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

		  US Dollars
		  Euro	
		  UAE Dirham
		  Pound Sterling
		  JPY
		  Australian dollars

		  Sensitivity analysis

	 A 10% strengthening of the Pakistani Rupee against foreign currencies at the reporting date 
would have decreased / increased loss / profit by the amounts shown below, mainly as a 
result of exchange losses / gains on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial 
instruments. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates 
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for the previous year.

	

	 Profit or loss account

38.3.3	 Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s 
significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:				  

Variable rate instruments
		
Financial assets	
Cash at bank - deposit accounts		
		
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings secured		

		
Net Exposure
												          

2018

113.14
134.84
30.80

152.78
1.00

85.50

 7,943,985 

(100,525,853)

 (92,581,868)

2018

2018

 41,096,992 

2018

121.50
141.45
33.08

159.28
1.10

89.69

3.14 to 3.97

7.12 to 7.82

2018

2017

104.65
114.28
28.49

132.92
0.96

78.94

 127,479,149 

(24,888,862)

 102,590,287 

2017

2017

 29,289,383 

2017

104.90
120.03
28.56

136.55
0.94

80.78

 2.40 to 5.40 

 6.61 to 7.11 

2017

Balance sheet date rate Average rate

Interest range / Effective rate
(in Percentage)

Carrying amount
(Rupees)

Profit and loss

-------------------Rupees----------------
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 (925,819)

 1,025,903 

100 bps
Increase

100 bps
Decrease

 925,819 

 (1,025,903)

Profit or loss

Rupees

As at 30 June 2018

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

As at 30 June 2017

Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
					   
	 A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased  

loss for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 
2017.

	 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year 
and assets / liabilities of the Group.									       
									       

	 38.3.4	 Other price risk

	 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest 
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial 
instruments traded in the market. To manage its price risk arising from investments in 
equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks in accordance 
with the risk investment guidelines approved by the investment committee. The Group is 
not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any financial instrument based 
on commodity prices.	

	 Sensitivity analysis

	 The table below summarizes the Group’s equity price risk as of 30 June 2018 and 2017 and 
shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at 
the year end. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered 
to be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be worse because of the nature 
of equity markets and the aforementioned concentrations existing in the Group’s equity 
investment portfolio.
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 	 38.3.5	 Fair value of financial instruments

	 The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The carrying value of all 
financial assets and liabilities on the balance sheet approximate to their fair value.		

	 (a)	 Fair values versus carrying amounts
		

	 The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are reasonable 
approximation of their fair value.	

													           
			 

Estimated 
fair value 

after 
hypothetical 

change in 
prices”

Estimated fair 
value after 

hypothetical 
change in 

prices”

-----------------------------Rupees----------------------------

-----------------------------Rupees----------------------------

Fair  
value

Fair  
value

2018

Short term investments

Investments at fair value through 
profit or loss

2017

Short term investments

Investments at fair value through 
profit or loss

“Hypothetical 
increase 

(decrease) in 
profit / (loss) 
before tax”

“Hypothetical 
increase 

(decrease) in 
profit / (loss) 
before tax”

“Hypothetical 
price change”

“Hypothetical 
price change”

 
1,035,920,846 
 847,571,602 

  941,537,763 
 770,349,079 

 941,746,224 

 941,746,224 

 855,943,421 

 855,943,421 

 94,174,622 
 (94,174,622)

 85,594,342 
 (85,594,342)

10% increase 
10% decrease

10% increase 
10% decrease
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	 (b)	 Valuation of financial instruments
	

	 IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the company to classify fair value 
measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following 
levels:										        
	

	 Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.

	 Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.				  
											         
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category 
includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based 
on observable data									       
								      

	 Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted 
market prices. For all other financial instruments the Company determines fair 
values using valuation techniques.							     
										        

	 Valuation techniques used by the Group include discounted cash flow model. 
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free rates, bond 
and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. 
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that 
reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have 
been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.				  
											         
		

	 Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires 
significant unobservable inputs and a higher degree of management judgement 
and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement and 
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to 
be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument 
being valued and selection of appropriate discount rates, etc.				  
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	 38.4	 Capital management 

	 The Board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The 
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Group defines as 
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors 
the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.							     
							     

	 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: 

(i)	 to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, 
and											         
		

	 (ii)	 to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

	 The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets.  In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or 
sell assets to reduce debt.									       
					   

	 Neither there were any changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the 
year nor the Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.			

39		  Group entities

		  The following table summarizes the information relating to the Group’s subsidiaries that have non 
controlling interest (NCI).										        
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Intra-Group
eliminations

BF 
Biosciences 

Limited
30 June 2018
Amount in Rupees

NCI percentage

Non current assets
Revaluation surplus - note 4.1
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue - net

(Loss) / profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive (loss) / income

Total comprehensive (loss) / income 
   allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities 
(dividends to NCI : Nil)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents

TotalFarmacia

 (8,880,429)

 (7,473,913)

20%

 215,145,798 
 171,570,736 
 726,943,585 

 6,693,751 
 155,638,145 

 951,328,223 

 190,265,645 

 536,558,769 

 (97,710,193)
 12,922,083 

 (84,788,110)

 (16,957,622)

 103,575,839 
 (62,531,826)

 (784,006)

 40,260,007 

 184,360,696 

 (24,087,669)

2%

 95,655,679 
 -   

 68,823,512 
 -   

 15,705,212 

 148,773,979 

 2,975,480 

 279,086,232 

 17,193,275 
 -   

 17,193,275 

 343,866 

 25,839,127 
 (62,383,479)

 -   

 (36,544,352)
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Intra-Group
eliminations

BF 
Biosciences 

Limited
30 June 2017
Amount in Rupees

NCI percentage

Non current assets
Revaluation surplus - note 4.1
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue - net

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income 
   allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities 
    (dividends to NCI : Nil)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash 
    and cash equivalents

TotalFarmacia

 (10,249,653)

 (6,407,319)

20%

 273,859,577 
 189,942,255 
 713,776,572 

 7,838,197 
 102,330,272 

1,067,409,935 

 213,481,987 

 609,513,026 

 24,430,289 
 -   

 24,430,289 

 4,886,058 

 (4,368,448)
 (12,515,951)

 (1,011,975)

 (17,896,374)

 205,863,948 

 (1,161,283)

2%

 19,542,197 
 -   

 125,214,717 
 -   

 13,176,211 

 131,580,703 

 2,631,614 

 268,399,784 

 17,998,894 
 -   

 17,998,894 

 359,978 

 14,269,329 
 (2,300,421)

 -   

 11,968,908 

40		  Non adjusting events after the balance sheet date

		  The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its meeting held on 25 September 2018 has 
proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 2 (2017: Rs. 4) per share, amounting to Rs. 60.37 million 
(2017: Rs. 120.75 million) for approval of the members in the Annual General Meeting to be held 
on 27 October 2018.											         
				  

41		  Corresponding figures

		  Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison 
and better presentation as per reporting framework. 							     
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42		  Date of authorization for issue

		  These consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 
of the Holding Company on 25 September 2018.

DirectorChief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer
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Pattern Of Shareholding 
As at 30 June 2018

From                                    To
1,704 1 100 68,696
1,354 101 500 417,893

608 501 1,000 486,671
686 1,001 5,000 1,614,420
139 5,001 10,000 1,026,375
28 10,001 15,000 348,690
20 15,001 20,000 359,850
19 20,001 25,000 436,482
13 25,001 30,000 357,734
8 30,001 35,000 257,966
3 35,001 40,000 108,504
4 40,001 45,000 171,426
4 45,001 50,000 190,213
3 50,001 55,000 156,700
5 55,001 60,000 285,685
3 60,001 65,000 184,048
1 65,001 70,000 67,000
1 75,001 80,000 77,700
1 90,001 95,000 94,000
3 95,001 100,000 291,352
1 110,001 115,000 110,256
1 140,001 145,000 143,850
1 145,001 150,000 150,000
1 155,001 160,000 157,142
2 160,001 165,000 324,644
1 170,001 175,000 170,600
1 175,001 180,000 179,503
1 180,001 185,000 180,235
1 210,001 215,000 212,550
1 270,001 275,000 274,696
1 295,001 300,000 295,463
2 330,001 335,000 666,946
1 350,001 355,000 352,690
1 355,001 360,000 359,116
1 360,001 365,000 362,314
1 365,001 370,000 369,531
1 380,001 385,000 384,955
1 410,001 415,000 410,979
1 430,001 435,000 434,941
1 435,001 440,000 437,416
1 650,001 655,000 651,347
1 700,001 705,000 701,600
1 900,001 905,000 904,934
1 905,001 910,000 906,427
1 950,001 955,000 954,441
1 1,335,001 1,340,000 1,339,755
1 1,720,001 1,725,000 1,722,375
1 1,825,001 1,830,000 1,825,442
1 8,200,001 8,205,000 8,201,288

4,638 30,186,841

Total Shares held
Shareholding 

No. of Shareholders
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As On: June 30, 2018
Categories of Shareholder Physical CDC Total % age

i. Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties
KFW Factors (Pvt) Limited 58,181 8,228,761 8,286,942 27.45

58,181 8,228,761 8,286,942 27.45
ii. Mutual Funds

- 51,200 51,200 0.17
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND - 170,600 170,600 0.57
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND - 143,850 143,850 0.48
CDC-TRUSTEE NITIPF EQUITY SUB-FUND - 3,350 3,350 0.01
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND - 26,650 26,650 0.09
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND - 61,500 61,500 0.20
ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED - MF - 1,000 1,000 0.00
GLOBAL X FUNDS-GLOBAL X MSCI PAKISTAN ETF - 25,130 25,130 0.08
CDC-TRUSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION FUND - 18,050 18,050 0.06

- 501,330 501,330 1.66
iii. Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Their Spouses and Minor Childern

Mrs. Akhter Khalid Waheed (Chairperson) 5,000 - 5,000 0.02
Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed (Chief Executive) 1,339,755 651,347 1,991,102 6.60
Mrs. Amna Piracha Khan 437,416 8,531 445,947 1.48
Mrs. Munize Azhar Peracha 333,473 - 333,473 1.10
Mr. NIHAL CASSIM - 9,762 9,762 0.03
Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain 2,500 - 2,500 0.01
Mst. SADIA AMIN (Spouse of Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed) - 3,000 3,000 0.01

2,118,144 672,640 2,790,784 9.25

iv. Executives 906,427 - 906,427 3.00

v. Public Sector Companies and Corporation - 3,550,280 3,550,280 11.76

vi. Banks, DFIs, NBFCs, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds
Banks, NBFCs, DFIs, Takaful, Pension Funds 3,223 339,728 342,951 1.14
Insurance Companies 163,792 1,039,646 1,203,438 3.99
Modarabas - 13,400 13,400 0.04
Other Companies,Corporate Bodies, Trust etc. 7,408 1,471,221 1,478,629 4.90

174,423 2,863,995 3,038,418 10.07
General Public

A. Local 5,519,782 5,003,874 10,523,656 34.86
B. Foreign - 589,004 589,004 1.95

5,519,782 5,592,878 11,112,660 36.81

8,776,957 21,409,884 30,186,841 100.00
Shareholders More Than 5.00%

Mr. Osman Khalid Waheed 1,991,102 6.60
KFW Factors (Pvt) Limited 8,286,942 27.45
STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN 1,825,442 6.05
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 1,722,375 5.71

No trade in has been made in Shares of the Company by Directros, CEO, CDO, Company 
Secretary, Executives and their spouces and minor children except for share mentioned 
below:

Mr. Arshad Saeed Husain Director 2,500       
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 62nd Sixty Second Annual General Meeting of FEROZSONS 
LABORATORIES LIMITED will be held on Saturday, October 27, 2018 at 12:30 P.M. at 
Hotel Shalimar, Aziz Bhatti Shaheed Road, Rawalpindi, to transact the following business: 
 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on October 18, 2017. 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2018 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors. 

3. To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 2 per share i.e. 20% for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.  

4. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. The 
present auditors Messrs KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and 
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. 

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair. 

 
          By Order of the Board 
 
 
 
Rawalpindi         Syed Ghausuddin Saif 
September 25, 2018            Company Secretary 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS: 
 

The share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 20, 2018 to 
October 27, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our 
Shares Registrar, M/s CorpTec Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 503-E, Johar Town, Lahore., by 
the close of the business on October 19, 2018 will be considered in time to determine the 
above mentioned entitlement. 

 
2. PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
 

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is also entitled to appoint another 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received at the Registered Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not later than 
48 hours before the time of the meeting. 
 

 CDC account holders will have to follow further under mentioned guidelines as laid down in 
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 by the securities and exchange commission of Pakistan 

 
A. For Attending the Meeting 
 

(i) In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders whose registration 
details are uploaded as per regulations shall authenticate their identity by showing 
their original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the 
time of attending the meeting. 
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(ii) In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney 
with specimen signature of the nominees shall be produced (unless it has not been 
provided earlier) at the time of the meeting. 

 
B. For Appointing Proxies 
 

(i) In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders whose registration 
details are uploaded as per regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above 
requirements.  

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC 
numbers shall be mentioned on the form. 

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall 
be furnished with the proxy form. 

(iv) The proxies shall produce their original CNIC or original passport at the time of the 
meeting. 

(v) In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney 
with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has not been provided earlier) 
along with proxy form to the company. 

 
3. DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX FROM DIVIDEND U/S 150 OF INCOME TAX 

ORDINANCE 2001: 
 
 Currently Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 prescribed the following rates 

for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies:  
 

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15% 
b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax returns 20% 

 
 In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-

filer and tax will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be 
notified by the shareholder, in writing as follows, to our Share Registrar, or if no 
notification, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares: 

 

Company 
Name 

Folio/ 
CDS ID/ 
A/C # 

Total 
Shares 

 
Principal Shareholder 

 
Joint Shareholder 

   Name 
and CNIC 

No. 

Shareholding 
proportion (No. 

of Shares) 

Name 
and 
CNIC 
No. 

Shareholding 
proportion (No. 

of Shares) 

       

 
 The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax 

status as per the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) from time to time. 

 
4. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX / ZAKAT: 
 
 Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at 

a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary documentary 
evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also 
requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat. 

 
5. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE: 
 
 Under the provision of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a 
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listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholder only through electronic mode 
directly into their bank account designated by the shareholders instead of issuing physical 
dividend warrants.  

 
 In pursuance of the directives of the SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 

2017, shareholders are requested to submit their written request (if not already provided) 
to the Company’s registered address, giving particulars of their bank account detail. In 
the absence of a member’s valid bank account detail by October 19, 2018, the Company 
will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend to such members. 

 
 CDC account holders are requested to submit their mandate instruction to the relevant 

member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account. 
 
6. SUBMISSION OF COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD (CNIC) FOR 

PAYMENT OF FINAL CASH DIVIDEND 2017-18: 
 
 Pursuant to the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), 

CNIC number of shareholders are MANDATORILY required for payment of dividend. 
Shareholders are therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC (if not already 
provided) to the Company’s Share Registrar. In the absence of a member’s valid CNIC, 
the Company will be constrained to withhold payment of cash dividend to such members. 

 
 CDC account holders are requested to submit attested copy of their CNIC to the relevant 

member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account. 
 
7. CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO 

SHAREHOLDERS THROUGH EMAIL/CD/USB/DVD OR ANY OTHER MEDIA: 
 
 Pursuant to the directions given by the SECP through its SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 

September 8, 2014 and SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 that have allowed the 
companies to circulate its Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. Annual Balance Sheet, Profit and 
Loss Accounts, Statements of Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement, Notes to the 
Financial Statements, Auditor’s and Director’s Report) to its members through 
Email/CD/DVD/USB/ or any other Electronic Media at their registered Addresses. 

 
 Shareholders who wish to receive the hard copy of Financial Statements shall have to fill 

the standard request form (available on the company’s website www.ferozsons-labs.com) 
and send it to the Company’s Share Registrar. 

 
 CDC account holders are requested to provide their email addresses to the relevant 

member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account. 
 
8. STATEMENT OF UNCLAIMED OR UNPAID AMOUNTS UNDER SECTION 244 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2017: 
 
 In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, once the Company has 

completed stipulated formalities, any unclaimed dividend and /or shares that have 
remained outstanding for a period of three years or more from the date of becoming due 
and payable shall be credited to the Federal Government (in case of dividend) or 
delivered to the SECP (in case of physical shares). 

  
 Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/physical shares are advised to contact 

our Share Registrar (CDC) to collect/inquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if 
any. 
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9. CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY 
 

 In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company receives 
consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a 
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 
days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video 
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail 
this facility a request is to be submitted to the Share Registrar.  

 
10. CHANGE IN ADDRESS: 
 
 The members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses. 
 
11. AVAILABILTY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S WEBSITE: 
 
 The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 have 

been made available on the Company’s website www.ferozsons-labs.com, at least 21 
days before the date of Annual General Meeting. 
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FORM OF PROXY 

62nd Annual General Meeting 

 

I/We,            of               

being a member of Ferozsons Laboratories Limited and holder of    

ordinary Shares as per share register Folio/CDC Account No.     hereby 

appoint Mr./Mrs.                   

Folio/CDC Account No.   of   CNIC No. or Passport 

No.   or failing him/her Mr./Mrs.     ______              

Folio/CDC Account No.   of   CNIC No. or Passport 

No.   who is also a member of the Company as my/our proxy to attend 

and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 62nd Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held on   , October   2018 at 12:30 

p.m. or at any adjournment thereof. 

 
 
      _____________________ 

        Signature of Shareholder 
 (The signature should agree with the 

specimen registered with the Company) 

 

Dated this _____day of_________2018 Signature of Proxy________________ 
 

1.  Witness:      2.   Witness: 

 Signature:             Signature: 

 Name:  ________________          Name:     _________________ 

 Address: ________________                  Address:  ________________ 

      ________________               ________________ 

 CNIC No. ________________           CNIC No. ________________ 

 

 

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received with the secretary of the 
company at the company’s registered office 197-A, The Mall, Rawalpindi at 
least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting. 

 
CDC Shareholders and their Proxies are each requested to attach an attested 
photocopy of their CNIC or Passport with the proxy form before submission to 
the Company. 

Five Rupees  

Revenue Stamp 
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